
ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD.
Form 10-Q
May 08, 2008

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C.  20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)
x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE

SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008

Or
o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE

SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period                                        to                                       

Commission file number:  0-26456

ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Bermuda Not Applicable
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or

organization)
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

Wessex House, 45 Reid Street
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code:  (441) 278-9250

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Edgar Filing: ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. - Form 10-Q

1



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.   Yes x     No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x   Accelerated filer  o   Non-accelerated filer   o       Smaller reporting company  o

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes o     No x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common shares as of the latest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at April 30, 2008
Common Shares, $0.01 par value 64,086,081
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Arch Capital Group Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Arch Capital Group Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of
March 31, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders� equity, comprehensive income and cash flows for
each of the three-month periods ended March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007. These interim financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company�s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying consolidated interim financial
statements for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders� equity, comprehensive
income, and of cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein), and in our report dated February 28, 2008, we expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
information as of December 31, 2007, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been
derived.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York

May 8, 2008
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,

2008 2007
Assets
Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost: 2008, $7,511,224; 2007, $7,037,272) $7,591,695 $7,137,998
Short-term investments available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost: 2008, $629,249; 2007, $700,262) 631,285 699,036
Short-term investment of funds received under securities lending agreements, at fair value 1,228,868 1,503,723
Other investments (cost: 2008, $308,075; 2007, $323,950) 316,252 353,694
Investment funds accounted for using the equity method 294,379 235,975
Total investments 10,062,479 9,930,426

Cash 258,680 239,915
Accrued investment income 73,686 73,862
Fixed maturities and short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value 1,190,086 1,463,045
Premiums receivable 880,946 729,628
Funds held by reinsureds 72,844 74,752
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 1,652,117 1,609,619
Paid losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 110,962 132,289
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 419,046 480,462
Deferred income tax assets, net 55,645 57,051
Deferred acquisition costs, net 311,364 290,059
Receivable for securities sold 671,354 17,359
Other assets 595,266 525,800
Total Assets $16,354,475 $15,624,267

Liabilities
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $7,319,141 $7,092,452
Unearned premiums 1,810,324 1,765,881
Reinsurance balances payable 322,280 301,309
Senior notes 300,000 300,000
Securities lending collateral 1,228,868 1,503,723
Payable for securities purchased 710,994 23,155
Other liabilities 658,324 601,936
Total Liabilities 12,349,931 11,588,456

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders� Equity
Non-cumulative preferred shares ($0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized)
- Series A (issued: 2008 and 2007, 8,000,000) 80 80
- Series B (issued: 2008 and 2007, 5,000,000) 50 50
Common shares ($0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, issued: 2008, 64,649,618; 2007, 67,318,466) 646 673
Additional paid-in capital 1,269,821 1,451,667
Retained earnings 2,617,539 2,428,117
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred income tax 116,408 155,224
Total Shareholders� Equity 4,004,544 4,035,811
Total Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity $16,354,475 $15,624,267

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Revenues
Net premiums written $811,342 $871,745
Increase in unearned premiums (103,108) (126,252)
Net premiums earned 708,234 745,493
Net investment income 122,193 110,047
Net realized gains (losses) 35,975 (981)
Fee income 1,068 1,969
Equity in net income (loss) of investment funds accounted for using the equity method (22,313) 2,642
Other income 4,036 604
Total revenues 849,193 859,774

Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 404,417 420,061
Acquisition expenses 114,639 120,128
Other operating expenses 97,187 90,813
Interest expense 5,524 5,523
Net foreign exchange losses 23,587 9,742
Total expenses 645,354 646,267

Income before income taxes 203,839 213,507

Income tax expense 7,956 8,495

Net income 195,883 205,012

Preferred dividends 6,461 6,461

Net income available to common shareholders $189,422 $198,551

Net income per common share
Basic $2.90 $2.69
Diluted $2.78 $2.59

Weighted average common shares and common share
equivalents outstanding
Basic 65,295,516 73,931,996
Diluted 68,019,413 76,640,686

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4

Edgar Filing: ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. - Form 10-Q

7



ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares
Balance at beginning and end of period $130 $130

Common Shares
Balance at beginning of year 673 743
Common shares issued, net 0 1
Purchases of common shares under share repurchase program (27) (7)
Balance at end of period 646 737

Additional Paid-in Capital
Balance at beginning of year 1,451,667 1,944,304
Common shares issued 0 109
Exercise of stock options 3,749 6,997
Common shares retired (190,278) (46,291)
Amortization of share-based compensation 4,600 4,306
Other 83 700
Balance at end of period 1,269,821 1,910,125

Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of year 2,428,117 1,593,907
Adjustment to adopt SFAS No. 155, �Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments�an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140� � 2,111
Balance at beginning of year, as adjusted 2,428,117 1,596,018
Dividends declared on preferred shares (6,461) (6,461)
Net income 195,883 205,012
Balance at end of period 2,617,539 1,794,569

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at beginning of year 155,224 51,535
Adjustment to adopt SFAS No. 155, �Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments�an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140� � (2,111)
Balance at beginning of year, as adjusted 155,224 49,424
Change in unrealized appreciation (decline) in value of investments, net of deferred income tax (37,577) 20,587
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of deferred income tax (1,239) 7,776
Balance at end of period 116,408 77,787

Total Shareholders� Equity $4,004,544 $3,783,348

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Comprehensive Income
Net income $195,883 $205,012
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of deferred income tax
Unrealized decline in value of investments:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period 12,707 22,014
Reclassification of net realized gains, net of income taxes, included in net income (50,284) (1,427)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (1,239) 7,776
Other comprehensive (loss) income (38,816) 28,363
Comprehensive Income $157,067 $233,375

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Operating Activities
Net income $195,883 $205,012
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net realized (gains) losses (33,791) 1,097
Equity in net (income) loss of investment funds accounted for using the equity method and other
income 18,277 (3,246)
Share-based compensation 4,600 4,306
Changes in:
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
recoverable 182,498 147,462
Unearned premiums, net of prepaid reinsurance premiums 105,497 127,107
Premiums receivable (148,197) (203,707)
Deferred acquisition costs, net (21,319) (23,700)
Funds held by reinsureds 1,908 21,602
Reinsurance balances payable 19,677 91,498
Other liabilities 40,490 1,296
Other items, net (30,978) 34,404
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 334,545 403,131

Investing Activities
Purchases of fixed maturity investments (3,772,652) (5,047,868)
Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity investments 3,523,338 4,326,607
Proceeds from redemptions and maturities of fixed maturity investments 136,932 183,984
Purchases of other investments (146,815) (151,978)
Proceeds from sales of other investments 65,226 54,754
Net sales of short-term investments 74,201 188,663
Change in securities lending collateral 274,855 (268,722)
Purchases of furniture, equipment and other (3,045) (4,138)
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Investing Activities 152,040 (718,698)

Financing Activities
Purchases of common shares under share repurchase program (189,843) (44,475)
Proceeds from common shares issued, net 2,540 3,145
Change in securities lending collateral (274,855) 268,722
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 660 2,355
Preferred dividends paid (6,461) (6,461)
Net Cash (Used For) Provided By Financing Activities (467,959) 223,286

Effects of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash 139 513

Increase (decrease) in cash 18,765 (91,768)
Cash beginning of year 239,915 317,017
Cash end of period $258,680 $225,249

Income taxes paid, net $2,510 $596
Interest paid � �

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1.      General

Arch Capital Group Ltd. (�ACGL�) is a Bermuda public limited liability company which provides insurance and reinsurance on a worldwide basis
through its wholly owned subsidiaries.

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (�GAAP�) and include the accounts of ACGL and its wholly owned subsidiaries (together with ACGL, the �Company�). All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (consisting of normally recurring accruals) necessary for a fair statement of results on an
interim basis. The results of any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results for a full year or any future periods.

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed
or omitted; however, management believes that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. This report
should be read in conjunction with the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, including the Company�s
audited consolidated financial statements and related notes and the section entitled �Risk Factors.�

To facilitate period-to-period comparisons, certain amounts in the 2007 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to
the 2008 presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on the Company�s consolidated net income.

2.      Share Transactions

Share Repurchase Program

On February 28, 2007, ACGL�s board of directors authorized the investment of up to $1 billion in ACGL�s common shares through a share
repurchase program. Repurchases under the program may be effected from time to time in open market or privately negotiated transactions
through February 2009. During the 2008 first quarter, ACGL repurchased approximately 2.7 million common shares under the share repurchase
program for an aggregate purchase price of $189.8 million. Since the inception of the share repurchase program, ACGL has repurchased
approximately 10.5 million common shares for an aggregate purchase price of $726.9 million. As a result of the share repurchase transactions,
book value per common share was reduced by $1.70 per share at March 31, 2008 and weighted average shares outstanding for the 2008 first
quarter were reduced by 9.4 million shares. The timing and amount of the repurchase transactions under this program will depend on a variety of
factors, including market conditions and corporate and regulatory considerations. In connection with the repurchase program, the Warburg
Pincus funds waived their rights relating to share repurchases under its shareholders agreement with ACGL for all repurchases of common
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shares by ACGL under the repurchase program in open market transactions and certain privately negotiated transactions.

Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares

During 2006, ACGL completed two public offerings of non-cumulative preferred shares (�Preferred Shares�). On February 1, 2006, $200.0
million principal amount of 8.0% series A non-cumulative preferred shares (�Series A Preferred Shares�) were issued with net proceeds of $193.5
million and, on May 24, 2006, $125.0 million principal amount of 7.875% series B non-cumulative preferred shares (�Series B Preferred Shares�)
were issued with net proceeds of $120.9 million. The net proceeds of the offerings were used to
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

support the underwriting activities of ACGL�s insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries. ACGL has the right to redeem all or a portion of each
series of Preferred Shares at a redemption price of $25.00 per share on or after (1) February 1, 2011 for the Series A Preferred Shares and
(2) May 15, 2011 for the Series B Preferred Shares. Dividends on the Preferred Shares are non-cumulative. Consequently, in the event dividends
are not declared on the Preferred Shares for any dividend period, holders of Preferred Shares will not be entitled to receive a dividend for such
period, and such undeclared dividend will not accrue and will not be payable. Holders of Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive dividend
payments only when, as and if declared by ACGL�s board of directors or a duly authorized committee of the board of directors. Any such
dividends will be payable from the date of original issue on a non-cumulative basis, quarterly in arrears. To the extent declared, these dividends
will accumulate, with respect to each dividend period, in an amount per share equal to 8.0% of the $25.00 liquidation preference per annum for
the Series A Preferred Shares and 7.875% of the $25.00 liquidation preference per annum for the Series B Preferred Shares. At March 31, 2008,
the Company had declared an aggregate of $3.3 million of dividends to be paid to holders of the Preferred Shares.

Share-Based Compensation

As required by the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment�
(�SFAS No. 123(R)�), the Company recorded after-tax share-based compensation expense related to stock options in the 2008 first quarter of $1.1
million, or $0.02 per diluted share, compared to $1.6 million, or $0.02 per diluted share, in the 2007 first quarter.

3.      Debt and Financing Arrangements

Senior Notes

On May 4, 2004, ACGL completed a public offering of $300 million principal amount of 7.35% senior notes (�Senior Notes�) due May 1, 2034
and received net proceeds of $296.4 million. ACGL used $200 million of the net proceeds to repay all amounts outstanding under a revolving
credit agreement. The Senior Notes are ACGL�s senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of its existing and future senior unsecured
indebtedness. Interest payments on the Senior Notes are due on May 1st and November 1st of each year. ACGL may redeem the Senior Notes at
any time and from time to time, in whole or in part, at a �make-whole� redemption price. For the 2008 and 2007 first quarters, interest expense on
the Senior Notes was approximately $5.5 million. The fair value of the Senior Notes at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 was $285.2
million and $325.4 million, respectively.

Letter of Credit and Revolving Credit Facilities

As of March 31, 2008, the Company had a $300 million unsecured revolving loan and letter of credit facility and a $1.0 billion secured letter of
credit facility (the �Credit Agreement�). The $300 million unsecured revolving loan is also available for the issuance of unsecured letters of credit
up to $100 million for Arch Reinsurance Company (�Arch Re U.S.�). Borrowings of revolving loans may be made by ACGL and Arch Re U.S. at
a variable rate based on LIBOR or an alternative base rate at the option of the Company. Secured letters of credit are available for issuance on
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behalf of the Company�s insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries. Issuance of letters of credit and borrowings under the Credit Agreement are
subject to the Company�s compliance with certain covenants and conditions, including absence of a material adverse change. These covenants
require, among other things, that the Company maintain a debt to shareholders� equity ratio of not greater than 0.35 to 1 and shareholders� equity
in excess of $1.95 billion plus 25% of future aggregate net income for each quarterly period (not including any future net losses) beginning after
June 30, 2006 and 25% of future aggregate proceeds from the issuance of common or preferred equity and that the Company�s principal
insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries maintain at least a �B++� rating from A.M. Best. In addition, certain of the Company�s subsidiaries which
are party to the Credit Agreement are required to maintain minimum shareholders� equity levels. The
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Company was in compliance with all covenants contained in the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2007. The Credit Agreement expires on
August 30, 2011.

Including the secured letter of credit portion of the Credit Agreement and another letter of credit facility (together, the �LOC Facilities�), the
Company has access to letter of credit facilities for up to a total of $1.45 billion. The principal purpose of the LOC Facilities is to issue, as
required, evergreen standby letters of credit in favor of primary insurance or reinsurance counterparties with which the Company has entered
into reinsurance arrangements to ensure that such counterparties are permitted to take credit for reinsurance obtained from the Company�s
reinsurance subsidiaries in United States jurisdictions where such subsidiaries are not licensed or otherwise admitted as an insurer, as required
under insurance regulations in the United States, and to comply with requirements of Lloyd�s of London in connection with qualifying quota
share and other arrangements. The amount of letters of credit issued is driven by, among other things, the timing and payment of catastrophe
losses, loss development of existing reserves, the payment pattern of such reserves, the further expansion of the Company�s business and the loss
experience of such business. When issued, certain letters of credit are secured by a portion of the Company�s investment portfolio. In addition,
the LOC Facilities also require the maintenance of certain covenants, which the Company was in compliance with at March 31, 2008. At such
date, the Company had approximately $579.9 million in outstanding letters of credit under the LOC Facilities, which were secured by
investments totaling $612.2 million. It is anticipated that the LOC Facilities will be renewed (or replaced) on expiry, but such renewal (or
replacement) will be subject to the availability of credit from banks which the Company utilizes. In addition to letters of credit, the Company has
and may establish insurance trust accounts in the U.S. and Canada to secure its reinsurance amounts payable as required.

4.      Segment Information

The Company classifies its businesses into two underwriting segments � insurance and reinsurance � and corporate and other (non-underwriting).
The Company�s insurance and reinsurance operating segments each have segment managers who are responsible for the overall profitability of
their respective segments and who are directly accountable to the Company�s chief operating decision makers, the President and Chief Executive
Officer of ACGL and the Chief Financial Officer of ACGL. The chief operating decision makers do not assess performance, measure return on
equity or make resource allocation decisions on a line of business basis. The Company determined its reportable operating segments using the
management approach described in SFAS No. 131, �Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.�

Management measures segment performance based on underwriting income or loss. The Company does not manage its assets by segment and,
accordingly, investment income is not allocated to each underwriting segment. In addition, other revenue and expense items are not evaluated by
segment. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those used for the preparation of the Company�s consolidated financial
statements. Intersegment business is allocated to the segment accountable for the underwriting results.

The insurance segment consists of the Company�s insurance underwriting subsidiaries which primarily write on both an admitted and
non-admitted basis. The insurance segment consists of nine product lines: casualty; construction and national accounts; executive assurance;
healthcare; professional liability; programs; property, marine and aviation; surety; and other (consisting of collateral protection, excess workers�
compensation and employers� liability business and travel and accident business).
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The reinsurance segment consists of the Company�s reinsurance underwriting subsidiaries. The reinsurance segment generally seeks to write
significant lines on specialty property and casualty reinsurance treaties. Classes of business include: casualty; marine and aviation; other
specialty; property catastrophe; property excluding property catastrophe (losses on a single risk, both excess of loss and pro rata); and other
(consisting of non-traditional and casualty clash business).
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Corporate and other (non-underwriting) includes net investment income, other fee income, net of related expenses, other income (loss), other
expenses incurred by the Company, interest expense, net realized gains or losses, equity in net income (loss) of investment funds accounted for
using the equity method, net foreign exchange gains or losses and income taxes. In addition, corporate and other results include dividends on the
Company�s non-cumulative preferred shares.The following tables set forth an analysis of the Company�s underwriting income by segment,
together with a reconciliation of underwriting income to net income available to common shareholders:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2008

(U.S. dollars in thousands) Insurance Reinsurance Total

Gross premiums written (1) $626,348 $433,827 $1,053,152
Net premiums written (1) 402,764 408,578 811,342

Net premiums earned (1) $419,100 $289,134 $708,234
Fee income 882 186 1,068
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (287,303) (117,114) (404,417)
Acquisition expenses, net (51,889) (62,750) (114,639)
Other operating expenses (73,637) (18,238) (91,875)
Underwriting income $7,153 $91,218 98,371

Net investment income 122,193
Net realized gains 35,975
Equity in net income (loss) of investment funds accounted for using the
equity method (22,313)
Other income 4,036
Other expenses (5,312)
Interest expense (5,524)
Net foreign exchange losses (23,587)
Income before income taxes 203,839
Income tax expense (7,956)

Net income 195,883
Preferred dividends (6,461)
Net income available to common shareholders $189,422

Underwriting Ratios
Loss ratio 68.6% 40.5% 57.1%
Acquisition expense ratio (2) 12.2% 21.7% 16.1%
Other operating expense ratio 17.6% 6.3% 13.0%
Combined ratio 98.4% 68.5% 86.2%

(1)  Certain amounts included in the gross premiums written of each segment are related to intersegment
transactions. Accordingly, the sum of gross premiums written for each segment does not agree to the total gross
premiums written as shown in the table above due to the elimination of intersegment transactions in the total. The
insurance segment results include $7.0 million of gross and net premiums written and $8.7 million of net premiums
earned assumed through intersegment transactions. The reinsurance segment results include $0.1 million of net
premiums earned assumed through intersegment transactions.
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(2)  The acquisition expense ratio is adjusted to include policy-related fee income.
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007

(U.S. dollars in thousands) Insurance Reinsurance Total

Gross premiums written (1) $661,210 $558,654 $1,210,614
Net premiums written (1) 428,344 443,401 871,745

Net premiums earned (1) $413,847 $331,646 $745,493
Fee income 1,425 544 1,969
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (259,322) (160,739) (420,061)
Acquisition expenses, net (46,695) (73,433) (120,128)
Other operating expenses (68,894) (13,781) (82,675)
Underwriting income $40,361 $84,237 124,598

Net investment income 110,047
Net realized losses (981)
Equity in net income (loss) of investment funds accounted for using the equity
method 2,642
Other income 604
Other expenses (8,138)
Interest expense (5,523)
Net foreign exchange losses (9,742)
Income before income taxes 213,507
Income tax expense (8,495)

Net income 205,012
Preferred dividends (6,461)
Net income available to common shareholders $198,551

Underwriting Ratios
Loss ratio 62.7% 48.5% 56.3%
Acquisition expense ratio (2) 11.1% 22.1% 16.0%
Other operating expense ratio 16.6% 4.2% 11.1%
Combined ratio 90.4% 74.8% 83.4%

(1)  Certain amounts included in the gross premiums written of each segment are related to intersegment
transactions. Accordingly, the sum of gross premiums written for each segment does not agree to the total gross
premiums written as shown in the table above due to the elimination of intersegment transactions in the total. The
insurance segment and reinsurance segment results include $0.5 million and $8.7 million, respectively, of gross and
net premiums written and $0.5 million and $10.6 million, respectively, of net premiums earned assumed through
intersegment transactions.

(2)  The acquisition expense ratio is adjusted to include certain fee income.
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Set forth below is summary information regarding net premiums written and earned by major line of business and net premiums written by client
location for the insurance segment:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2008 2007
INSURANCE SEGMENT
(U.S. dollars in thousands) Amount

% of
Total Amount

% of
Total

Net premiums written (1)
Property, marine and aviation $98,162 24.4 $84,863 19.8
Construction and national accounts 61,211 15.2 60,483 14.1
Programs 54,583 13.5 58,323 13.6
Professional liability 54,081 13.4 58,355 13.6
Executive assurance 42,169 10.5 44,091 10.3
Casualty 27,618 6.9 43,091 10.1
Healthcare 10,997 2.7 21,530 5.0
Surety 10,867 2.7 18,747 4.4
Other (2) 43,076 10.7 38,861 9.1
Total $402,764 100.0 $428,344 100.0

Net premiums earned (1)
Property, marine and aviation $84,992 20.3 $81,804 19.8
Construction and national accounts 57,115 13.6 47,975 11.6
Programs 56,987 13.6 56,209 13.6
Professional liability 68,810 16.4 67,884 16.4
Executive assurance 44,408 10.6 45,378 11.0
Casualty 41,772 10.0 51,542 12.4
Healthcare 13,445 3.2 19,844 4.8
Surety 13,499 3.2 19,129 4.6
Other (2) 38,072 9.1 24,082 5.8
Total $419,100 100.0 $413,847 100.0

Net premiums written by client location (1)
United States $279,255 69.3 $320,005 74.7
Europe 86,300 21.4 74,935 17.5
Other 37,209 9.3 33,404 7.8
Total $402,764 100.0 $428,344 100.0

Net premiums written by underwriting location (1)
United States $287,207 71.3 $331,557 77.4
Europe 102,011 25.3 82,016 19.1
Other 13,546 3.4 14,771 3.5
Total $402,764 100.0 $428,344 100.0

(1)  Insurance segment results include premiums earned assumed through intersegment transactions of $0.1 million
for the 2008 first quarter and premiums written and earned assumed of $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively, for
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the 2007 first quarter. Insurance segment results exclude premiums written and earned ceded through intersegment
transactions of $7.0 million and $8.7 million, respectively, for the 2008 first quarter and $8.7 million and $10.6
million, respectively, for the 2007 first quarter.

(2)  Includes excess workers� compensation and employers� liability business and travel and accident business.
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The following table sets forth the reinsurance segment�s net premiums written and earned by major line of business and type of business, together
with net premiums written by client location:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2008 2007
REINSURANCE SEGMENT
(U.S. dollars in thousands) Amount

% of
Total Amount

% of
Total

Net premiums written (1)
Property catastrophe $106,224 26.0 $80,659 18.2
Casualty (2) 105,987 26.0 144,476 32.6
Property excluding property catastrophe (3) 95,922 23.5 94,944 21.4
Other specialty 75,680 18.5 73,996 16.7
Marine and aviation 22,164 5.4 43,715 9.8
Other 2,601 0.6 5,611 1.3
Total $408,578 100.0 $443,401 100.0

Net premiums earned (1)
Property catastrophe $50,281 17.4 $34,691 10.5
Casualty (2) 107,648 37.2 140,444 42.4
Property excluding property catastrophe (3) 63,341 21.9 73,039 22.0
Other specialty 38,484 13.3 52,042 15.7
Marine and aviation 27,431 9.5 26,622 8.0
Other 1,949 0.7 4,808 1.4
Total $289,134 100.0 $331,646 100.0

Net premiums written (1)
Pro rata $215,419 52.7 $263,815 59.5
Excess of loss 193,159 47.3 179,586 40.5
Total $408,578 100.0 $443,401 100.0

Net premiums earned (1)
Pro rata $192,076 66.4 $242,439 73.1
Excess of loss 97,058 33.6 89,207 26.9
Total $289,134 100.0 $331,646 100.0

Net premiums written by client location (1)
United States $217,179 53.2 $253,991 57.3
Europe 143,920 35.2 124,338 28.0
Bermuda 34,060 8.3 50,841 11.5
Other 13,419 3.3 14,231 3.2
Total $408,578 100.0 $443,401 100.0

Net premiums written by underwriting
location (1)
Bermuda $220,669 54.0 $252,028 56.8
United States 154,480 37.8 180,362 40.7
Other 33,429 8.2 11,011 2.5
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Total $408,578 100.0 $443,401 100.0

(1)  Reinsurance segment results include premiums written and earned assumed through intersegment transactions
of $7.0 million and $8.7 million, respectively, for the 2008 first quarter and $8.7 million and $10.6 million,
respectively, for the 2007 first quarter. Reinsurance segment results exclude premiums earned ceded through
intersegment transactions of $0.1 million for the 2008 first quarter and premiums written and earned ceded of $0.5
million and $0.5 million, respectively, for the 2007 first quarter.

(2)  Includes professional liability, executive assurance and healthcare business.

(3)  Includes facultative business.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

5.      Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company�s insurance subsidiaries cede a substantial portion of their premium through pro rata, excess of
loss and facultative reinsurance agreements. The Company�s reinsurance subsidiaries participate in �common account� retrocessional arrangements
for certain pro rata treaties. Such arrangements reduce the effect of individual or aggregate losses to all companies participating on such treaties,
including the reinsurers, such as the Company�s reinsurance subsidiaries, and the ceding company. In addition, the Company�s reinsurance
subsidiaries may purchase retrocessional coverage as part of their risk management program. Reinsurance recoverables are recorded as assets,
predicated on the reinsurers� ability to meet their obligations under the reinsurance agreements. If the reinsurers are unable to satisfy their
obligations under the agreements, the Company�s insurance or reinsurance subsidiaries would be liable for such defaulted amounts.

The effects of reinsurance on the Company�s written and earned premiums and losses and loss adjustment expenses with unaffiliated reinsurers
were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Premiums Written
Direct $619,486 $649,880
Assumed 433,666 560,734
Ceded (241,810) (338,869)
Net $811,342 $871,745

Premiums Earned
Direct $630,814 $637,008
Assumed 365,364 416,132
Ceded (287,944) (307,647)
Net $708,234 $745,493

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
Direct $420,971 $359,476
Assumed 141,249 195,271
Ceded (157,803) (134,686)
Net $404,417 $420,061

The Company monitors the financial condition of its reinsurers and attempts to place coverages only with substantial, financially sound
carriers. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, approximately 87.9% and 88.5%, respectively, of the Company�s reinsurance
recoverables on paid and unpaid losses (not including prepaid reinsurance premiums) of $1.76 billion and $1.74 billion, respectively,
were due from carriers which had an A.M. Best rating of �A-� or better. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the largest
reinsurance recoverables from any one carrier were less than 5.7% and 5.2%, respectively, of the Company�s total shareholders� equity.
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On December 29, 2005, Arch Re Bermuda entered into a quota share reinsurance treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd., a Bermuda reinsurance company,
pursuant to which Flatiron Re Ltd. assumed a 45% quota share (the �Treaty�) of certain lines of property and marine business underwritten by
Arch Re Bermuda for unaffiliated third parties for the 2006 and 2007 underwriting years (January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2007). Effective
June 28, 2006, the parties amended the Treaty to increase the percentage ceded to Flatiron Re Ltd. from 45% to 70% of all covered business
bound by Arch Re Bermuda from (and including) June 28, 2006 until (and including) August 15, 2006 provided such business did not incept
beyond September 30, 2006. The ceding percentage for all business bound outside of this period continued to be 45%. On December 31, 2007,
the Treaty expired by its terms.
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Flatiron Re Ltd. is required to contribute funds into a trust for the benefit of Arch Re Bermuda (the �Trust�). Effective June 28, 2006, the parties
amended the Treaty to provide that, through the earning of all written premium, the amount required to be on deposit in the Trust, together with
certain other amounts, will be an amount equal to a calculated amount estimated to cover ceded losses arising from in excess of two 1-in-250
year events for the applicable forward twelve-month period (the �Requisite Funded Amount�). If the actual amounts on deposit in the Trust,
together with certain other amounts (the �Funded Amount�), do not at least equal the Requisite Funded Amount, Arch Re Bermuda will, among
other things, recapture unearned premium reserves and reassume losses that would have been ceded in respect of such unearned premiums. No
assurances can be given that actual losses will not exceed the Requisite Funded Amount or that Flatiron Re Ltd. will make, or will have the
ability to make, the required contributions into the Trust.

Arch Re Bermuda pays to Flatiron Re Ltd. a reinsurance premium in the amount of the ceded percentage of the original gross written premium
on the business reinsured less a ceding commission, which includes a reimbursement of direct acquisition expenses as well as a commission to
Arch Re Bermuda for generating the business. The Treaty also provides for a profit commission to Arch Re Bermuda based on the underwriting
results for the 2006 and 2007 underwriting years on a cumulative basis. For the 2008 first quarter, $18.4 million of premiums written, $58.9
million of premiums earned and $11.8 million of losses and loss adjustment expenses were ceded to Flatiron Re Ltd. by Arch Re Bermuda,
compared to $108.9 million of premiums written, $66.0 million of premiums earned and $25.4 million of losses and loss adjustment expenses
for the 2007 first quarter. At March 31, 2008, $104.5 million of premiums ceded to Flatiron Re Ltd. were unearned. Reinsurance recoverables
from Flatiron Re Ltd., which is not rated by A.M. Best, were $167.1 million at March 31, 2008, compared to $152.6 million at December 31,
2007. As noted above, Flatiron Re Ltd. is required to contribute funds into a trust for the benefit of Arch Re Bermuda. The recoverable from
Flatiron Re Ltd. was fully collateralized through such trust at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

6.      Investment Information

The following table summarizes the Company�s invested assets:

March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value $7,591,695 $7,137,998
Fixed maturities pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value (1) 1,189,050 1,462,826
Total fixed maturities 8,780,745 8,600,824
Short-term investments available for sale, at fair value 631,285 699,036
Short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value (1) 1,036 219
Other investments 316,252 353,694
Investment funds accounted for using the equity method 294,379 235,975
Total investments (1) 10,023,697 9,889,748
Securities transactions entered into but not settled at the balance sheet date (39,640) (5,796)
Total investments, net of securities transactions $9,984,057 $9,883,952

(1)  In securities lending transactions, the Company receives collateral in excess of the fair value of the fixed
maturities and short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements. For purposes of this table, the

Edgar Filing: ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. - Form 10-Q

27



Company has excluded the collateral received at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 of $1.23 billion and $1.5
billion, respectively, which is reflected as �short-term investment of funds received under securities lending
agreements, at fair value� and included the $1.19 billion and $1.46 billion, respectively, of �fixed maturities and
short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value.�
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Fixed Maturities and Fixed Maturities Pledged Under Securities Lending Agreements

The following table summarizes the Company�s fixed maturities and fixed maturities pledged under securities lending agreements:

(U.S. dollars in thousands)
Estimated
Fair Value

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Amortized

Cost

March 31, 2008:
Corporate bonds $2,380,756 $63,605 ($32,568) $2,349,719
Commercial mortgage backed securities 1,334,521 17,326 (6,536) 1,323,731
Mortgage backed securities 1,333,473 19,605 (41,664) 1,355,532
Municipal bonds 1,184,123 17,156 (3,156) 1,170,123
Asset backed securities 1,082,196 15,956 (7,020) 1,073,260
U.S. government and government agencies 1,028,256 29,468 (735) 999,523
Non-U.S. government securities 437,420 34,497 (2,259) 405,182
Total $8,780,745 $197,613 ($93,938) $8,677,070

December 31, 2007:
Corporate bonds $2,452,527 $40,296 ($10,994) $2,423,225
Commercial mortgage backed securities 1,315,680 17,339 (558) 1,298,899
Mortgage backed securities 1,234,596 14,211 (4,087) 1,224,472
Municipal bonds 990,325 13,213 (195) 977,307
Asset backed securities 1,008,030 9,508 (4,030) 1,002,552
U.S. government and government agencies 1,165,423 21,598 (447) 1,144,272
Non-U.S. government securities 434,243 28,032 (3,056) 409,267
Total $8,600,824 $144,197 ($23,367) $8,479,994

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, �Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments � an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 133 and 140� (�SFAS No. 155�). Upon adopting SFAS No. 155 on January 1, 2007, the Company applied the �fair value option� to certain
hybrid securities which are included in the Company�s fixed maturities and records changes in market value of such securities as realized gains or
losses. The fair market values of such securities at March 31, 2008 were approximately $62.9 million and the Company recorded a realized loss
of $2.4 million on such securities in the 2008 first quarter.
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The Company�s investment portfolio, which includes fixed maturity securities, short-term investments and other investments, had a �AA+� average
credit quality rating at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. The credit quality distribution of the Company�s fixed maturities and fixed
maturities pledged under securities lending agreements are shown below:

(U.S. dollars in thousands) March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Rating (1)
Estimated
Fair Value % of Total

Estimated
Fair Value % of Total

AAA $6,676,227 76.0 $6,600,258 76.7
AA 950,671 10.8 882,262 10.3
A 730,523 8.3 677,047 7.9
BBB 209,874 2.4 243,610 2.8
BB 34,072 0.4 25,390 0.3
B 113,912 1.3 128,459 1.5
Lower than B 9,785 0.1 11,321 0.1
Not rated 55,681 0.7 32,477 0.4
Total $8,780,745 100.0 $8,600,824 100.0
(1) Ratings as assigned by the major rating agencies.

Securities Lending Agreements

The Company participates in a securities lending program under which certain of its fixed income portfolio securities are loaned to third parties,
primarily major brokerage firms, for short periods of time through a lending agent. Such securities have been reclassified as �Fixed maturities and
short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value.� The Company maintains control over the securities it lends,
retains the earnings and cash flows associated with the loaned securities and receives a fee from the borrower for the temporary use of the
securities. Collateral received, primarily in the form of cash, is required at a rate of 102% of the market value of the loaned securities (or 105%
of the market value of the loaned securities when the collateral and loaned securities are denominated in non-U.S. currencies) including accrued
investment income and is monitored and maintained by the lending agent. Such collateral is reinvested and is reflected as �Short-term investment
of funds received under securities lending agreements, at fair value.� At March 31, 2008, the fair value and amortized cost of fixed maturities and
short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements were $1.19 billion and $1.17 billion, respectively, while collateral received
totaled $1.23 billion at fair value and amortized cost. At December 31, 2007, the fair value and amortized cost of fixed maturities and short-term
investments pledged under securities lending agreements were $1.46 billion and $1.44 billion, respectively, while collateral received totaled $1.5
billion at fair value and amortized cost.

Investment-Related Derivatives

The Company�s investment strategy allows for the use of derivative securities. Derivative instruments may be used to enhance investment
performance, replicate investment positions or manage market exposures and duration risk that would be allowed under the Company�s
investment guidelines if implemented in other ways. The fair values of those derivatives are based on quoted market prices. At March 31, 2008,
the notional value of the net short position for equity futures was $66.2 million, compared to a net long position for equity futures of $91.2
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million at December 31, 2007. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the notional value of the net long position for Treasury note futures
was $444.4 million and $61.7 million, respectively. For the 2008 first quarter, the Company recorded $5.8 million of net realized losses related
to changes in the fair value of all futures contracts, compared to $0.9 million of net realized losses for the 2007 first quarter.
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Other Investments

The following table details the Company�s other investments:

March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

(U.S. dollars in thousands)
Estimated
Fair Value Cost

Estimated
Fair Value Cost

Mutual funds $253,947 $255,624 $286,147 $266,515
Privately held securities and other 62,305 52,451 67,547 57,435
Total $316,252 $308,075 $353,694 $323,950

Other investments include: (i) mutual funds which invest in fixed maturity securities and international equity index funds; and (ii) privately held
securities and other which include the Company�s investment in Aeolus LP (see Note 9). The Company�s investment commitments relating to its
other investments and investment funds accounted for using the equity method totaled approximately $91.5 million at March 31, 2008.

Investment Funds Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The Company�s investment portfolio includes certain funds that invest in fixed maturity securities which, due to their ownership structure, are
accounted for by the Company using the equity method. In applying the equity method, these investments are initially recorded at cost and are
subsequently adjusted based on the Company�s proportionate share of the net income or loss of the funds (which include changes in the market
value of the underlying securities in the funds). Changes in the carrying value of such investments are recorded in net income as �Equity in net
income (loss) of investment funds accounted for using the equity method.� Changes in the carrying value of the Company�s other fixed income
investments are recorded as an unrealized gain or loss component of accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders� equity.
Investment funds accounted for using the equity method totaled $294.4 million at March 31, 2008, compared to $236.0 million at December 31,
2007. The Company recorded $22.3 million of equity in net loss of investment funds accounted for using the equity method in the 2008 first
quarter, compared to equity in net income of $2.6 million in the 2007 first quarter.

Restricted Assets

The Company is required to maintain assets on deposit, which primarily consist of fixed maturities, with various regulatory authorities to support
its insurance and reinsurance operations. The assets on deposit are available to settle insurance and reinsurance liabilities to third parties. The
Company also has investments in segregated portfolios primarily to provide collateral or guarantees for letters of credit to third parties. The
following table details the value of restricted assets:
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March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Assets used for collateral or guarantees $714,871 $736,938
Deposits with U.S. regulatory authorities 248,399 251,586
Trust funds 139,005 133,238
Deposits with non-U.S. regulatory authorities 57,130 46,789
Total restricted assets $1,159,405 $1,168,551

In addition, certain of the Company�s operating subsidiaries maintain assets in trust accounts as collateral for insurance and reinsurance
transactions with affiliated companies. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, such amounts approximated $3.84 billion and $3.8 billion,
respectively.
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Net Investment Income

The components of net investment income were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Fixed maturities $107,233 $98,099
Short-term investments 7,167 9,734
Other (1) 10,782 6,019
Gross investment income 125,182 113,852
Investment expenses (2,989) (3,805)
Net investment income $122,193 $110,047

(1) Primarily consists of interest income on operating cash accounts, other investments and securities lending transactions.

Net Realized Gains (Losses)

The components of net realized gains (losses) were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Fixed maturities $52,821 ($1,144)
Other investments (3,178) 1,139
Other (13,668) (976)
Net realized gains (losses) $35,975 ($981)

For the 2008 first quarter, net realized gains on the Company�s fixed maturities of $52.8 million included a provision for declines in the market
value of investments held in the Company�s available for sale portfolio which were considered to be other-than-temporary of $12.6 million based
on a review performed. For the 2007 first quarter, net realized losses on the Company�s fixed maturities of $1.1 million included a provision for
declines in the market value of investments held in the Company�s available for sale portfolio which were considered to be other-than-temporary
of $7.2 million based on a review performed. For the 2008 and 2007 first quarters, the balance of net realized gains or losses on the Company�s
fixed maturities resulted from the sale of securities following the Company�s decisions to reduce credit exposure, changes in duration targets and
sales related to rebalancing the portfolio.
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Certain of the Company�s investments, primarily included in other investments and investments accounted for using the equity method on the
Company�s balance sheet, may use leverage to achieve a higher rate of return. While leverage presents opportunities for increasing the total
return of such investments, it may increase losses as well. Accordingly, any event that adversely affects the value of the underlying securities
held by such investments would be magnified to the extent leverage is used and the Company�s potential losses from such investments would be
magnified.

Fair Value

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted and implemented SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities � Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115� (�SFAS No. 159�), which provides a fair value option to measure many
financial instruments and certain other assets and liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The Company did not apply the
fair value option on any financial assets or financial liabilities during the 2008 first quarter.
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In addition, effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted and implemented SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS No. 157�), which
addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for recognition or disclosure purposes
under GAAP and provides a common definition of fair value to be used throughout GAAP. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fashion between market participants at the measurement date.

SFAS No. 157 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for the disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon
the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The level in the hierarchy within which a given fair
value measurement falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the measurement (Level 1 being the highest priority
and Level 3 being the lowest priority). The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for securities measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such
securities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

The Company reviews its securities measured at fair value and discusses the proper classification of such investments with investment advisors
and others. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 157 and at March 31, 2008, the Company determined that Level 1 securities would include highly
liquid, recent issue U.S. Treasuries and certain of its short-term investments held in highly liquid money market-type funds where it believes that
quoted prices are available in an active market.

Where the Company believes that quoted market prices are not available or that the market is not active, fair values are estimated by using
quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, pricing models or matrix pricing and are generally classified as Level 2 securities. The
Company determined that Level 2 securities would include corporate bonds, mortgage backed securities, municipal bonds, asset backed
securities, certain U.S. government and government agencies, non-U.S. government securities, certain short-term securities and investments in
mutual funds.

In certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation, securities are classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy. Securities classified within Level 3 include certain private equity investments and a small number of corporate premium-tax
bonds held at amortized cost by the Company�s U.S. insurance operations. Private equity investments are valued initially based upon transaction
price and then adjusted upwards or downwards from the transaction price to reflect expected exit values.
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ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the Company�s invested assets, categorized by the level within the SFAS No. 157 hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall, at March 31, 2008:

Fair Value Measurement Using:

March 31,

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical

Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Fixed maturities (1) $8,780,745 $205,042 $8,570,567 $5,136
Short-term investments (1) 632,321 577,660 54,661 �
Other investments (2) 252,732 � 241,587 11,145
Total $9,665,798 $782,702 $8,866,815 $16,281

(1)  In securities lending transactions, the Company receives collateral in excess of the fair value of the fixed
maturities and short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements. For purposes of this table, the
Company has excluded the collateral received at March 31, 2008 of $1.23 billion, which is reflected as �short-term
investment of funds received under securities lending agreements, at fair value� and included the $1.19 billion of �fixed
maturities and short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value.�

(2)  Excludes the Company�s investment in Aeolus LP which is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for all investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis
using Level 3 inputs during the 2008 first quarter:

Fair Value Measurements Using:
Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

(U.S. dollars in thousands)
Fixed

Maturities
Other

Investments Total

Beginning balance at January 1, 2008 $3,752 $11,504 $15,256
Total gains or (losses) (realized/unrealized)
Included in earnings (1) (38) 237 199
Included in other comprehensive income � (303) (303)
Purchases, issuances and settlements 1,422 (293) 1,129
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 � � �
Ending balance at March 31, 2008 $5,136 $11,145 $16,281
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(1) Losses on fixed maturities were recorded as a component of net investment income while gains on other investments were recorded
in net realized gains.

The amount of total gains for the 2008 first quarter included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets
still held at March 31, 2008 was $0.2 million.
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7.      Earnings Per Common Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data) 2008 2007

Basic earnings per common share:
Net income $195,883 $205,012
Preferred dividends (6,461) (6,461)
Net income available to common shareholders $189,422 $198,551
Divided by:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 65,295,516 73,931,996

Basic earnings per common share $2.90 $2.69

Diluted earnings per common share:
Net income $195,883 $205,012
Preferred dividends (6,461) (6,461)
Net income available to common shareholders $189,422 $198,551
Divided by:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 65,295,516 73,931,996
Effect of dilutive securities:
Nonvested restricted shares 223,787 165,006
Stock options (1) 2,500,110 2,543,684
Weighted average common shares and common share equivalents outstanding �
diluted 68,019,413 76,640,686

Diluted earnings per common share $2.78 $2.59

(1) Certain stock options were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share where the exercise price of the stock
options exceeded the average market price and would have been anti-dilutive or where, when applying the treasury stock method to
in-the-money options, the sum of the proceeds, including unrecognized compensation, exceeded the average market price and would have been
anti-dilutive. For the 2008 and 2007 first quarters, the number of stock options excluded were 347,298 and 268,250, respectively.

8.      Income Taxes

ACGL is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda and, under current Bermuda law, is not obligated to pay any taxes in Bermuda based upon
income or capital gains. The Company has received a written undertaking from the Minister of Finance in Bermuda under the Exempted
Undertakings Tax Protection Act 1966 that, in the event that any legislation is enacted in Bermuda imposing any tax computed on profits,
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income, gain or appreciation on any capital asset, or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax, such tax will not be applicable to
ACGL or any of its operations until March 28, 2016. This undertaking does not, however, prevent the imposition of taxes on any person
ordinarily resident in Bermuda or any company in respect of its ownership of real property or leasehold interests in Bermuda.

ACGL and its non-U.S. subsidiaries will be subject to U.S. federal income tax only to the extent that they derive U.S. source income that is
subject to U.S. withholding tax or income that is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business within the U.S. and is not exempt
from U.S. tax under an applicable income tax treaty with the U.S. ACGL and its non-U.S. subsidiaries will be subject to a withholding tax on
dividends from U.S. investments and interest from certain U.S. payors (subject to reduction by any applicable income tax treaty). ACGL and its
non-U.S. subsidiaries intend to conduct their operations in a manner that will not cause them to be treated as engaged in a trade or business in the
United States and, therefore, will not be required to pay U.S. federal income taxes (other than U.S. excise taxes on insurance and reinsurance
premium and withholding taxes on dividends and certain other U.S. source investment income). However, because there is uncertainty as to the
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activities which constitute being engaged in a trade or business within the United States, there can be no assurances that the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service will not contend successfully that ACGL or its non-U.S. subsidiaries are engaged in a trade or business in the United States. If
ACGL or any of its non-U.S. subsidiaries were subject to U.S. income tax, ACGL�s shareholders� equity and earnings could be materially
adversely affected. ACGL has subsidiaries and branches that operate in various jurisdictions around the world that are subject to tax in the
jurisdictions in which they operate. The significant jurisdictions in which ACGL�s subsidiaries and branches are subject to tax are the United
States, United Kingdom, Canada, Switzerland, Germany and Denmark.

The Company�s income tax provision resulted in an effective tax rate on income before income taxes of 3.9% for the 2008 first quarter, compared
to 4.0% for the 2007 first quarter. The Company�s effective tax rate, which is based upon the expected annual effective tax rate, may fluctuate
from period to period based on the relative mix of income reported by jurisdiction due primarily to the varying tax rates in each jurisdiction.

The United States also imposes an excise tax on insurance and reinsurance premiums paid to non-U.S. insurers or reinsurers with respect to risks
located in the United States. The rates of tax, unless reduced by an applicable U.S. tax treaty, are four percent for non-life insurance premiums
and one percent for life insurance and all reinsurance premiums. The Company incurs federal excise taxes on certain of its reinsurance
transactions, including amounts ceded through intercompany transactions. For the 2008 first quarter and 2007 first quarter, the Company
withheld and paid approximately $2.8 million and $3.9 million, respectively, of federal excise taxes.

9.      Transactions with Related Parties

The Company made an investment of $50.0 million in Aeolus LP (�Aeolus�) in 2006. Aeolus operates as an unrated reinsurance platform that
provides property catastrophe protection to insurers and reinsurers on both an ultimate net loss and industry loss warranty basis. In return for its
investment, included in �Other investments� on the Company�s balance sheet, the Company received an approximately 4.9% preferred interest in
Aeolus and a pro rata share of certain founders� interests. The Company made its investment in Aeolus on the same economic terms as a fund
affiliated with Warburg Pincus, which has invested $350 million in Aeolus. Funds affiliated with Warburg Pincus owned 16.3% of the
Company�s outstanding voting shares as of December 31, 2007. In addition, one of the founders of Aeolus is Peter Appel, former President and
CEO and a former director of the Company.

10.    Contingencies Relating to the Sale of Prior Reinsurance Operations

On May 5, 2000, the Company sold the prior reinsurance operations of Arch Re U.S. pursuant to an agreement entered into as of January 10,
2000 with Folksamerica Reinsurance Company and Folksamerica Holding Company (collectively, �Folksamerica�). Folksamerica Reinsurance
Company assumed Arch Re U.S.�s liabilities under the reinsurance agreements transferred in the asset sale and Arch Re U.S. transferred to
Folksamerica Reinsurance Company assets estimated in an aggregate amount equal in book value to the book value of the liabilities assumed.
The Folksamerica transaction was structured as a transfer and assumption agreement (and not reinsurance) and, accordingly, the loss reserves
(and any related reinsurance recoverables) relating to the transferred business are not included as assets or liabilities on the Company�s balance
sheet. Folksamerica assumed Arch Re U.S.�s rights and obligations under the reinsurance agreements transferred in the asset sale. The reinsureds
under such agreements were notified that Folksamerica had assumed Arch Re U.S.�s obligations and that, unless the reinsureds object to the
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assumption, Arch Re U.S. will be released from its obligations to those reinsured. None of such reinsureds objected to the assumption. However,
Arch Re U.S. will continue to be liable under those reinsurance agreements if the notice is found not to be an effective release by the reinsureds.
Folksamerica has agreed to indemnify the Company for any losses arising out of the reinsurance agreements transferred to Folksamerica
Reinsurance Company in the asset sale. However, in the event that Folksamerica refuses or is unable to perform its obligations to the Company,
Arch Re U.S. may incur losses
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relating to the reinsurance agreements transferred in the asset sale. Folksamerica�s A.M. Best rating was �A-� (Excellent) at March 31, 2008.

Under the terms of the agreement, in 2000, the Company had also purchased reinsurance protection covering the Company�s transferred aviation
business to reduce the net financial loss to Folksamerica on any large commercial airline catastrophe to $5.4 million, net of reinstatement
premiums. Although the Company believes that any such net financial loss will not exceed $5.4 million, the Company has agreed to reimburse
Folksamerica if a loss is incurred that exceeds $5.4 million for aviation losses under certain circumstances prior to May 5, 2003. The Company
also made representations and warranties to Folksamerica about the Company and the business transferred to Folksamerica for which the
Company retains exposure for certain periods, and made certain other agreements. In addition, the Company retained its tax and employee
benefit liabilities and other liabilities not assumed by Folksamerica, including all liabilities not arising under reinsurance agreements transferred
to Folksamerica in the asset sale and all liabilities (other than liabilities arising under reinsurance agreements) arising out of or relating to a
certain managing underwriting agency. Although Folksamerica has not asserted that any amount is currently due under any of the indemnities
provided by the Company under the asset purchase agreement, Folksamerica has previously indicated a potential indemnity claim under the
agreement in the event of the occurrence of certain future events. Based on all available information, the Company has denied the validity of any
such potential claim.

11.    Commitments and Contingencies

Variable Interest Entities

On December 29, 2005, Arch Re Bermuda entered into a quota share reinsurance treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd., a newly-formed Bermuda
reinsurance company, pursuant to which Flatiron Re Ltd. assumed a 45% quota share (the �Treaty�) of certain lines of property and marine
business underwritten by Arch Re Bermuda for unaffiliated third parties for the 2006 and 2007 underwriting years (January 1, 2006 to
December 31, 2007). As a result of the terms of the Treaty, the Company determined that Flatiron Re Ltd. is a variable interest entity. However,
Arch Re Bermuda is not the primary beneficiary of Flatiron Re Ltd. and, as such, the Company is not required to consolidate the assets,
liabilities and results of operations of Flatiron Re Ltd. per FIN 46R. On December 31, 2007, the Treaty expired by its terms. See Note 5,
�Reinsurance� for information on the Treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd.

12.    Legal Proceedings

The Company, in common with the insurance industry in general, is subject to litigation and arbitration in the normal course of its business. As
of March 31, 2008, the Company was not a party to any material litigation or arbitration other than as a part of the ordinary course of business in
relation to claims and reinsurance recoverable matters, none of which is expected by management to have a significant adverse effect on the
Company�s results of operations and financial condition and liquidity.
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13.    Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities� (�SFAS No. 161�). SFAS
No. 161 is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to
enable investors to better understand their effects on an entity�s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. The new standard also
improves transparency about the location and amounts of derivative instruments in an entity�s financial statements; how derivative instruments
and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement 133; and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect its financial
position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The Company is reviewing the impact that adopting SFAS No. 161 will
have on its financial statements.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements which involve inherent risks and uncertainties. All statements other
than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on our current assessment of risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied in these statements. Important factors that could cause actual
events or results to differ materially from those indicated in such statements are discussed in this report, including the section entitled �Cautionary
Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements,� and in our periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�).For
additional information regarding our business and operations, please also refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007, including our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes and the sections entitled �Risk Factors� and
�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.�

GENERAL

Overview

Arch Capital Group Ltd. (�ACGL� and, together with its subsidiaries, �we� or �us�) is a Bermuda public limited liability company with over
$4.3 billion in capital at March 31, 2008 and, through operations in Bermuda, the United States, Europe and Canada, writes insurance and
reinsurance on a worldwide basis. While we are positioned to provide a full range of property and casualty insurance and reinsurance lines, we
focus on writing specialty lines of insurance and reinsurance. It is our belief that our underwriting platform, our experienced management team
and our strong capital base that is unencumbered by significant pre-2002 risks have enabled us to establish a strong presence in the insurance
and reinsurance markets.

The worldwide insurance and reinsurance industry is highly competitive and has traditionally been subject to an underwriting cycle in which a
hard market (high premium rates, restrictive underwriting standards, as well as terms and conditions, and underwriting gains) is eventually
followed by a soft market (low premium rates, relaxed underwriting standards, as well as broader terms and conditions, and underwriting losses).
Insurance market conditions may affect, among other things, the demand for our products, our ability to increase premium rates, the terms and
conditions of the insurance policies we write, changes in the products offered by us or changes in our business strategy.

The financial results of the insurance and reinsurance industry are influenced by factors such as the frequency and/or severity of claims and
losses, including natural disasters or other catastrophic events, variations in interest rates and financial markets, changes in the legal, regulatory
and judicial environments, inflationary pressures and general economic conditions. These factors influence, among other things, the demand for
insurance or reinsurance, the supply of which is generally related to the total capital of competitors in the market.

In general, market conditions improved during 2002 and 2003 in the insurance and reinsurance marketplace. This reflected improvement in
pricing, terms and conditions following significant industry losses arising from the events of September 11, 2001, as well as the recognition that
intense competition in the late 1990s led to inadequate pricing and overly broad terms, conditions and coverages. Such industry developments
resulted in poor financial results and erosion of the industry�s capital base. Consequently, many established insurers and reinsurers reduced their
participation in, or exited from, certain markets and, as a result, premium rates escalated in many lines of business. These developments
provided relatively new insurers and reinsurers, like us, with an opportunity to provide needed underwriting capacity. Beginning in late 2003 and
continuing through 2005, additional capacity emerged in many classes of business and, consequently, premium rate increases decelerated
significantly and, in many classes of business, premium rates decreased. The weather-related catastrophic events that occurred in the second half
of 2005 caused significant industry losses and led to
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a strengthening of rating agency capital requirements for catastrophe-exposed business. The 2005 events also resulted in substantial
improvements in market conditions in property and certain marine lines of business and slowed declines in premium rates in other lines. During
2006 and 2007, excellent industry results led to a significant increase in capacity and, accordingly, competition intensified in 2007 and prices
declined generally in all lines of business, including property. This trend has continued in 2008.

Current Outlook

We increased our writings in property and certain marine lines of business in 2006 and 2007 in order to take advantage of improved market
conditions and these lines represented a larger proportion of our overall book of business in 2006 and 2007 than in prior periods. We expect that
our writings in these lines of business will continue to represent a significant proportion of our overall book of business in future periods and
may represent a larger proportion of our overall book of business in future periods, which could increase the volatility in our results of
operations. Although we saw price erosion in many of our lines in 2006 and 2007, current pricing remains at acceptable levels in many areas,
even in lines for which rates have fallen. The most attractive area from a pricing point of view remains catastrophe-related property business. We
believe that we are still able to write insurance and reinsurance business at what we believe to be acceptable rates. We maintained underwriting
discipline during the 2008 first quarter and, as a result, premiums written by our insurance and reinsurance operations were lower than in the
2007 first quarter. Such trend may continue as we respond to more challenging market conditions.

In December 2005, we entered into a quota-share reinsurance treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd., a dedicated reinsurance vehicle, which allowed us to
increase our participation in property and marine lines without significantly increasing our probable maximum loss. On December 31, 2007, the
treaty expired by its terms. For its January 1, 2008 renewals, our Bermuda-based reinsurer adjusted its book of business in light of the expiration
of the treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd. The treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd. provides for commission income (in excess of the reimbursement of direct
acquisition expenses) which includes a profit commission based on the reported underwriting results on a cumulative basis. We record the profit
commission portion of income from Flatiron Re Ltd. based on underwriting experience recorded each quarter. The profit commission
arrangement with Flatiron Re Ltd. may increase the volatility of our reported results of operations on both a quarterly and annual basis. At
March 31, 2008, $104.5 million of premiums ceded to Flatiron Re Ltd. were unearned. The attendant premiums earned, losses incurred and
acquisition expenses will primarily be reflected in our results during the balance of 2008.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Critical accounting policies, estimates and recent accounting pronouncements are discussed in Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, updated
where applicable in the notes accompanying our consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

The following table sets forth net income available to common shareholders and earnings per common share data:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data) 2008 2007

Net income available to common shareholders $189,422 $198,551
Diluted net income per common share $2.78 $2.59
Diluted weighted average common shares and common share equivalents outstanding 68,019,413 76,640,686

Our net income available to common shareholders for the 2008 first quarter represented a 20.5% annualized return on average common equity,
compared to 23.6% for the 2007 first quarter. For purposes of computing return on average common equity, average common equity has been
calculated as the average of common shareholders� equity outstanding at the beginning and ending of each period.

Diluted weighted average common shares and common share equivalents outstanding, used in the calculation of net income per common share,
were 68.0 million in the 2008 first quarter, compared to 76.6 million in the 2007 first quarter. The lower level of weighted average shares
outstanding in the 2008 first quarter was primarily due to the impact of share repurchases. As a result of the share repurchase transactions to
date, weighted average shares outstanding for the 2008 first quarter were reduced by 9.4 million shares. Share repurchases during the 2007 first
quarter had a minimal impact on the weighted average shares outstanding in the period due to the timing of such transactions.

Segment Information

We classify our businesses into two underwriting segments � insurance and reinsurance � and corporate and other (non-underwriting). SFAS
No. 131, �Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,� requires certain disclosures about operating segments in a
manner that is consistent with how management evaluates the performance of the segment. For a description of our underwriting segments, refer
to note 4, �Segment Information,� of the notes accompanying our consolidated financial statements. Management measures segment performance
based on underwriting income or loss.
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Insurance Segment

The following table sets forth our insurance segment�s underwriting results:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Gross premiums written $626,348 $661,210
Net premiums written 402,764 428,344

Net premiums earned $419,100 $413,847
Fee income 882 1,425
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (287,303) (259,322)
Acquisition expenses, net (51,889) (46,695)
Other operating expenses (73,637) (68,894)
Underwriting income $7,153 $40,361

Underwriting Ratios
Loss ratio 68.6% 62.7%
Acquisition expense ratio (1) 12.2% 11.1%
Other operating expense ratio 17.6% 16.6%
Combined ratio 98.4% 90.4%

(1)  The acquisition expense ratio is adjusted to include certain fee income.

Underwriting Income.  The insurance segment�s underwriting income was $7.2 million for the 2008 first quarter, compared to $40.4 million for
the 2007 first quarter. The combined ratio for the insurance segment was 98.4% for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 90.4% for the 2007 first
quarter. The components of the insurance segment�s underwriting income are discussed below.

Premiums Written.  Gross premiums written by the insurance segment in the 2008 first quarter were 5.3% lower than in the 2007 first quarter,
while net premiums written were 6.0% lower as the insurance segment maintained underwriting discipline in response to the current rate
environment. The decrease in net premiums written in the 2008 first quarter was partially driven by a lower level of U.S. specialty casualty
business, primarily driven by the U.S. housing market and residential construction project cancellations. Other contributors to the decrease in the
2008 first quarter were a reduction in healthcare business in response to competition and the current rate environment and an increase in the use
of reinsurance on surety business. For information regarding net premiums written produced by major line of business and geographic location,
refer to note 4, �Segment Information,� of the notes accompanying our consolidated financial statements.
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The presentation of the insurance segment�s net premiums written and earned by major line of business has been adjusted. Surety business has
been separated from construction, surety and national accounts and travel and accident business has been separated from professional liability
and shown in �other�. Set forth below is an adjusted schedule of net premiums written and earned by major line of business for the remaining three
quarterly periods in 2007 adjusted for the 2008 presentation changes:

Three Months Ended
INSURANCE SEGMENT December 31, September 30, June 30,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2007 2007 2007

Net premiums written
Property, marine and aviation $55,531 $85,361 $104,705
Construction and national accounts 57,396 54,543 55,514
Programs 50,523 67,792 59,154
Professional liability 65,832 80,707 64,356
Executive assurance 46,511 46,845 47,904
Casualty 35,235 46,209 57,240
Healthcare 13,891 15,952 12,383
Surety 11,114 13,233 12,968
Other (1) 41,324 49,377 37,604
Total $377,357 $460,019 $451,828

Net premiums earned
Property, marine and aviation $79,948 $81,430 $92,387
Construction and national accounts 58,602 55,464 50,965
Programs 58,248 59,518 57,036
Professional liability 67,280 67,257 65,805
Executive assurance 44,885 46,481 47,408
Casualty 47,086 50,049 52,570
Healthcare 15,256 16,249 17,107
Surety 14,874 16,597 16,597
Other (1) 40,173 36,539 32,685
Total $426,352 $429,584 $432,560

(1)  Includes excess workers� compensation and employers� liability business and travel and accident business.

Net Premiums Earned.  Net premiums earned by the insurance segment in the 2008 first quarter were 1.3% higher than in the 2007 first quarter,
and reflect changes in net premiums written over the previous five quarters, including the mix and type of business written.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses.  The loss ratio for the insurance segment was 68.6% in the 2008 first quarter, compared to 62.7% for the
2007 first quarter. The 2008 first quarter loss ratio included 4.8 points related to the Australian floods in the period and 2.8 points related to large
specific risk losses in short-tail lines in the period, while the 2007 first quarter loss ratio included 1.3 points related to large specific risk losses.
The 2008 first quarter loss ratio reflected a 1.4 point reduction related to estimated net favorable development in prior year loss reserves,
compared to a 0.2 point reduction in prior year loss reserves in the 2007 first quarter. The estimated net favorable development in the 2008 first
quarter was primarily in medium-tail and longer-tail lines, partially offset by adverse development from short-tail lines which primarily resulted
from higher than expected claims development on property, marine and aviation business. The insurance segment�s loss ratio in the 2008 first
quarter also reflects an increase in expected loss ratios across a number of lines of business and changes in the mix of business.
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In the 2008 first quarter, the insurance segment renewed its reinsurance program which provides coverage for certain property-catastrophe
related losses occurring during 2008 equal to a maximum of 70% of the first $275 million in excess of a $75 million retention per occurrence.
The insurance segment had in effect during 2007 a reinsurance program which provided coverage equal to a maximum of 88% of the first $325
million in
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excess of a $75 million retention per occurrence for certain property catastrophe-related losses occurring during 2007.

Underwriting Expenses.  The insurance segment�s underwriting expense ratio was 29.8% in the 2008 first quarter, compared to 27.7% in the
2007 first quarter. The acquisition expense ratio was 12.2% for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 11.1% for the 2007 first quarter. The
acquisition expense ratio is influenced by, among other things, (1) the amount of ceding commissions received from unaffiliated reinsurers,
(2) the amount of business written on a surplus lines (non-admitted) basis and (3) mix of business. The acquisition expense ratio in the 2008 first
quarter reflects changes in the form of reinsurance ceded and the mix of business. The insurance segment�s other operating expense ratio was
17.6% for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 16.6% in the 2007 first quarter. The higher operating expense ratio in the 2008 first quarter
compared to the 2007 first quarter was primarily due to growth in operating expenses without a proportionate increase in net premiums earned.

Reinsurance Segment

The following table sets forth our reinsurance segment�s underwriting results:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007
Gross premiums written $433,827 $558,654
Net premiums written 408,578 443,401

Net premiums earned $289,134 $331,646
Fee income 186 544
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (117,114) (160,739)
Acquisition expenses, net (62,750) (73,433)
Other operating expenses (18,238) (13,781)
Underwriting income $91,218 $84,237

Underwriting Ratios
Loss ratio 40.5% 48.5%
Acquisition expense ratio 21.7% 22.1%
Other operating expense ratio 6.3% 4.2%
Combined ratio 68.5% 74.8%

Underwriting Income.  The reinsurance segment�s underwriting income was $91.2 million for the 2008 first quarter, compared to $84.2 million
for the 2007 first quarter. The combined ratio for the reinsurance segment was 68.5% for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 74.8% for the 2007
first quarter. The components of the reinsurance segment�s underwriting income are discussed below.

Premiums Written.  Gross premiums written by the reinsurance segment in the 2008 first quarter were 22.3% lower than in the 2007 first quarter,
with reductions in all treaty lines of business. The reinsurance segment�s Bermuda-based reinsurer, Arch Reinsurance Ltd. (�Arch Re Bermuda�),
ceded certain lines of property and marine premiums written under a quota share reinsurance treaty (the �Treaty�) to Flatiron Re Ltd. Under the
Treaty, Flatiron Re Ltd. assumed a 45% quota share of certain lines of property and marine business underwritten by Arch Re Bermuda for the
2006 and 2007 underwriting years (the percentage ceded was increased from 45% to 70% of covered business bound from June 28, 2006 until
August 15, 2006 provided such business did not incept beyond September 30, 2006). On December 31, 2007, the Treaty expired by its
terms. For its January 1, 2008 renewals, Arch Re Bermuda adjusted its book of business in light of the expiration of the Treaty. In addition, other
reductions in the reinsurance segment�s book of business resulted from continued competition which led to non-renewals or lower shares written.
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Ceded premiums written by the reinsurance segment were 5.8% of gross premiums written for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 20.6% for the
2007 first quarter. In the 2008 first quarter, Arch Re Bermuda ceded $18.4 million, or 4.2% of gross premiums written, of certain lines of
property and marine premiums written under the Treaty to Flatiron Re Ltd., compared to $108.9 million, or 19.5%, in the 2007 first quarter, with
the lower level due to the expiration of the Treaty. On an earned basis, Arch Re Bermuda ceded $58.9 million to Flatiron Re Ltd. in the 2008
first quarter, compared to $66.0 million in the 2007 first quarter. Commission income from the Treaty (in excess of the reimbursement of direct
acquisition expenses) reduced the reinsurance segment�s acquisition expense ratio by 3.3 points in the 2008 first quarter, compared to 2.8 points
in the 2007 first quarter. At March 31, 2008, $104.5 million of premiums ceded to Flatiron Re Ltd. were unearned. The attendant premiums
earned, losses incurred and acquisition expenses will primarily be reflected in the reinsurance segment�s results during the balance of 2008.

Net premiums written by the reinsurance segment in the 2008 first quarter were 7.9% lower than in the 2007 first quarter. For information
regarding net premiums written produced by major line of business and geographic location, refer to note 4, �Segment Information,� of the notes
accompanying our consolidated financial statements.

Net Premiums Earned.  Net premiums earned by the reinsurance segment in the 2008 first quarter were 12.8% lower than in the 2007 first
quarter. The decrease in net premiums earned in the 2008 first quarter primarily resulted from changes in net premiums written over the previous
five quarters, including the mix and type of business written.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses.  The reinsurance segment�s loss ratio was 40.5% in the 2008 first quarter, compared to 48.5% for the 2007
first quarter. The loss ratio for the 2008 first quarter reflected a 17.7 point reduction related to estimated net favorable development in prior year
loss reserves, compared to a 14.1 point reduction in the 2007 first quarter. The estimated net favorable development in the 2008 first quarter was
primarily in short-tail lines and resulted from better than anticipated loss emergence. The 2008 first quarter loss ratio also reflected
approximately 2.0 points of catastrophic activity, while the 2007 first quarter loss ratio reflected approximately 4.8 points of catastrophic
activity. The reinsurance segment�s loss ratio in the 2008 first quarter also reflected an increase in expected loss ratios across a number of lines of
business and changes in the mix of business.

For its January 1 renewals, Arch Re Bermuda adjusted its book of business in light of the expiration of the Treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd. While
our reinsurance operations may purchase industry loss warranty contracts and other reinsurance which is intended to limit their exposure, the
expiration of the Treaty increases the risk retention of our reinsurance operations and, as a result, may increase the volatility in our results of
operations in future periods.

Underwriting Expenses.  The underwriting expense ratio for the reinsurance segment was 28.0% in the 2008 first quarter, compared to 26.3% in
the 2007 first quarter. The acquisition expense ratio for the 2008 first quarter was 21.7%, compared to 22.1% for the 2007 first quarter. The
acquisition expense ratio is influenced by, among other things, the mix and type of business written and earned and the level of ceding
commission income. The reinsurance segment�s other operating expense ratio was 6.3% for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 4.2% for the 2007
first quarter. The higher ratio in the 2008 first quarter primarily resulted from expenses related to the reinsurance segment�s property facultative
reinsurance operation, which commenced operations during the 2007 second quarter, and a lower level of net premiums earned.

Net Investment Income

Net investment income for the 2008 first quarter was $122.2 million, compared to $110.0 million for the 2007 first quarter. The increase in net
investment income in the 2008 first quarter primarily resulted from a higher level of average invested assets in the 2008 first quarter and also
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included $3.4 million of interest income
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resulting from a favorable arbitration decision. The pre-tax investment income yield increased to 4.88% (excluding the arbitration interest) for
the 2008 first quarter, compared to 4.84% for the 2007 first quarter. The pre-tax investment income yields were calculated based on amortized
cost. Yields on future investment income may vary based on financial market conditions, investment allocation decisions and other factors.

Net Realized Gains or Losses

Following is a summary of net realized gains (losses):

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Fixed maturities $52,821 ($1,144)
Other investments (3,178) 1,139
Other (13,668) (976)
Total $35,975 ($981)

Currently, our portfolio is actively managed to maximize total return within certain guidelines. In assessing returns under this approach, we
include net investment income, net realized gains and losses and the change in unrealized gains and losses generated by our investment portfolio.
The effect of financial market movements on the investment portfolio will directly impact net realized gains and losses as the portfolio is
adjusted and rebalanced. Total return on our portfolio under management, as reported to us by our investment advisors, for the 2008 first quarter
was 0.95%, compared to 1.47% for the 2007 first quarter.

For the 2008 first quarter, net realized gains on our fixed maturities of $52.8 million, respectively, included a provision for declines in the
market value of investments held in our available for sale portfolio which were considered to be other-than-temporary of $12.6 million based on
a review performed. For the 2007 first quarter, net realized losses on our fixed maturities of $1.1 million included a provision for declines in the
market value of investments held in the Company�s available for sale portfolio which were considered to be other-than-temporary of $7.2 million
based on a review performed. For the 2008 and 2007 first quarters, the balance of net realized gains or losses on our fixed maturities resulted
from the sale of securities following our decisions to reduce credit exposure, changes in duration targets and sales related to rebalancing the
portfolio.

Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investment Funds Accounted for Using the Equity Method

We recorded $22.3 million of equity in net loss of investment funds accounted for using the equity method in the 2008 first quarter. Investment
funds accounted for using the equity method totaled $294.4 million at March 31, 2008. Our investment portfolio includes certain funds that
invest in fixed maturity securities which, due to the ownership structure of the funds, are accounted for by us using the equity method. In
applying the equity method, these investments are initially recorded at cost and are subsequently adjusted based on our proportionate share of the
net income or loss of the funds (which include changes in the market value of the underlying securities in the funds).
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Following is a summary of equity in net income (loss) of investment funds accounted for using the equity method (previously included in net
investment income) for each quarterly period in 2007 and the investment funds accounted for using the equity method (previously included in
other investments) at each balance sheet date during 2007:

Three Months Ended

(U.S. dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2007
September 30,

2007
June 30,

2007
March 31,

2007

Equity in net income (loss) of investment funds
accounted for using the equity method ($906) ($5,283) $3,376 $2,642

Investment funds accounted for using the equity
method, at balance sheet date $235,974 $216,917 $188,005 $153,663

Other Expenses

Other expenses, which are included in our other operating expenses and part of corporate and other (non-underwriting), were $5.3 million for the
2008 first quarter, compared to $8.1 million for the 2007 first quarter. Such amounts primarily represent certain holding company costs
necessary to support our worldwide insurance and reinsurance operations, share based compensation expense and costs associated with operating
as a publicly traded company.

Net Foreign Exchange Gains or Losses

Net foreign exchange losses for the 2008 first quarter of $23.6 million consisted of net unrealized losses of $22.3 million and net realized losses
of $1.3 million, compared to net foreign exchange losses for the 2007 first quarter of $9.7 million which consisted of net unrealized losses of
$17.2 million and net realized gains of $7.5 million. Net unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses result from the effects of revaluing our net
insurance liabilities required to be settled in foreign currencies at each balance sheet date. We hold investments in foreign currencies which are
intended to mitigate our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations in our net insurance liabilities. However, changes in the value of such
investments due to foreign currency rate movements are reflected as a direct increase or decrease to shareholders� equity, as part of the �Change in
unrealized appreciation (decline) in value of investments, net of deferred income tax� in accumulated other comprehensive income, and not in the
statement of income.

Income Taxes

The effective tax rate on income before income taxes was 3.9% for the 2008 first quarter, compared to 4.0% for the 2007 first quarter. Our
effective tax rates may fluctuate from period to period based on the relative mix of income reported by jurisdiction primarily due to the varying
tax rates in each jurisdiction. Our quarterly tax provision is adjusted to reflect changes in our expected annual effective tax rates, if any.

A significant portion of our catastrophe-exposed property business is written by a Bermuda-based subsidiary. As a result, on a relative basis, our
effective tax rate is likely to be favorably affected in periods that have a low level of catastrophic losses incurred and adversely impacted in
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periods with significant catastrophic claims activity. In addition, our Bermuda-based reinsurer incurs federal excise taxes for premiums assumed
on U.S. risks. Such expenses are included in our acquisition expenses.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Financial Condition

Investable Assets

The finance and investment committee of our board of directors establishes our investment policies and creates guidelines for our investment
managers. The finance and investment committee reviews the implementation of the investment strategy on a regular basis. Our current
approach stresses preservation of capital, market liquidity and diversification of risk.

On a consolidated basis, our aggregate investable assets totaled $10.24 billion at March 31, 2008, compared to $10.12 billion at December 31,
2007, as detailed in the table below. The increase in investable assets in the 2008 first quarter resulted primarily from cash flows from operations
during the period, partially offset by share repurchase activity.

March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value $7,591,695 $7,137,998
Fixed maturities pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value (1) 1,189,050 1,462,826
Total fixed maturities 8,780,745 8,600,824
Short-term investments available for sale, at fair value 631,285 699,036
Short-term investments pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value (1) 1,036 219
Cash 258,680 239,915
Other investments 316,252 353,694
Investment funds accounted for using the equity method 294,379 235,975
Total cash and investments (1) 10,282,377 10,129,663
Securities transactions entered into but not settled at the balance sheet date (39,640) (5,796)
Total investable assets $10,242,737 $10,123,867

(1) In our securities lending transactions, we receive collateral in excess of the fair value of the fixed maturities and short-term investments
pledged under securities lending agreements. For purposes of this table, we have excluded the collateral received at March 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 of $1.23 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively, which is reflected as �short-term investment of funds received under securities
lending agreements, at fair value� and included the $1.19 billion and $1.46 billion, respectively, of �fixed maturities and short-term investments
pledged under securities lending agreements, at fair value.�

At March 31, 2008, our fixed income portfolio, which includes fixed maturity securities and short-term investments, had a �AA+� average
Standard & Poor�s quality rating, an average effective duration of 3.50 years, and an average yield to maturity (imbedded book yield), before
investment expenses, of 4.82%. At December 31, 2007, our fixed income portfolio had a �AA+� average Standard & Poor�s quality rating, an
average effective duration of 3.29 years, and an average yield to maturity (imbedded book yield), before investment expenses, of 5.03%. The
increase in the effective duration of our investment portfolio in the 2008 first quarter was primarily attributable to an increase in the duration of
our municipal bond holdings due to the method of calculating duration on such securities, which relies on the yield relationship of municipal
bonds to U.S. Treasuries.
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In recent months, delinquencies and losses with respect to residential mortgage loans generally have increased and may continue to increase,
particularly in the subprime sector. In addition, in recent months residential property values in many states have declined or remained stable,
after extended periods during which those values appreciated. A continued decline or an extended flattening in those values may result in
additional increases in delinquencies and losses on residential mortgage loans generally, especially with respect to second homes and investment
properties, and with respect to any residential mortgage loans where the aggregate loan amounts
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(including any subordinate loans) are close to or greater than the related property values. These developments may have a significant adverse
effect on the prices of loans and securities, including those in our investment portfolio. The situation continues to have wide ranging
consequences, including downward pressure on economic growth and the potential for increased insurance and reinsurance exposures, which
could have an adverse impact on our results of operations, financial condition, business and operations.

Certain of the our investments, primarily included in other investments and investments accounted for using the equity method on our balance
sheet, may use leverage to achieve a higher rate of return. While leverage presents opportunities for increasing the total return of such
investments, it may increase losses as well. Accordingly, any event that adversely affects the value of the underlying securities held by such
investments would be magnified to the extent leverage is used and our potential losses from such investments would be magnified.

Our Chief Investment Officer administers the investment portfolio, oversees our investment managers, formulates investment strategy in
conjunction with our finance and investment committee and directly manages certain portions of our fixed income portfolio. At March 31, 2008,
approximately $4.76 billion, or 46.5%, of our total investments and cash was internally managed, compared to $4.61 billion, or 45.5%, at
December 31, 2007. While maintaining our emphasis on preservation of capital and liquidity, we expect our portfolio to become more
diversified and, as a result, we may expand into areas which are not currently part of our investment strategy.

Our investment strategy allows for the use of derivative instruments. We utilize various derivative instruments such as futures contracts as part
of the management of our stock index fund investments and to replicate equity investment positions. Derivative instruments may be used to
enhance investment performance, to replicate investment positions or to manage market exposures and duration risk that would be allowed under
our investment guidelines if implemented in other ways. See Note 6, �Investment Information�Investment-Related Derivatives,� of the notes
accompanying our consolidated financial Statements for additional disclosures concerning derivatives.

Other investments totaled $316.3 million at March 31, 2008, compared to $353.7 million at December 31, 2007. Investment funds accounted for
using the equity method totaled $294.4 million at March 31, 2008, compared to $236.0 million at December 31, 2007. Our investment
commitments related to other investments and investment funds accounted for using the equity method totaled approximately $91.5 million at
March 31, 2008. See Note 6, �Investment Information�Other Investments� and �Investment Information�Investment Funds Accounted for Using the
Equity Method� of the notes accompanying our consolidated financial statements for further details.

Reinsurance Recoverables

We monitor the financial condition of our reinsurers and attempt to place coverages only with substantial, financially sound carriers. At
March 31, 2008, approximately 87.9% of reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid losses (not including prepaid reinsurance premiums) of
$1.76 billion were due from carriers which had an A.M. Best rating of �A-� or better and the largest reinsurance recoverable from any one carrier
was less than 5.7% of our total shareholders� equity. At December 31, 2007, approximately 88.5% of our reinsurance recoverables on paid and
unpaid losses (not including prepaid reinsurance premiums) of $1.74 billion were due from carriers which had an A.M. Best rating of �A-� or
better, and the largest reinsurance recoverable from any one carrier was less than 5.2%, respectively, of our total shareholders� equity.

Reinsurance recoverables from Flatiron Re Ltd., which is not rated by A.M. Best, were $167.1 million at March 31, 2008, compared to $152.6
million at December 31, 2007. Flatiron Re Ltd. is required to contribute funds into a trust for the benefit of Arch Re Bermuda. The recoverable
from Flatiron Re Ltd. was fully collateralized through such trust at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. See Note 5, �Reinsurance,� of the
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notes accompanying our consolidated financial Statements for further details on the quota share reinsurance treaty with Flatiron Re Ltd.

Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

We establish reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses (�Loss Reserves�) which represent estimates involving actuarial and statistical
projections, at a given point in time, of our expectations of the ultimate settlement and administration costs of losses incurred. Estimating Loss
Reserves is inherently difficult, which is exacerbated by the fact that we are a relatively new company with relatively limited historical
experience upon which to base such estimates. We utilize actuarial models as well as available historical insurance industry loss ratio experience
and loss development patterns to assist in the establishment of Loss Reserves. Actual losses and loss adjustment expenses paid will deviate,
perhaps substantially, from the reserve estimates reflected in our financial statements.

At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, our Loss Reserves, net of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable, by type and by
operating segment were as follows:

March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Insurance:
Case reserves. $884,743 $811,054
IBNR reserves 2,158,479 2,100,696
Total net reserves $3,043,222 $2,911,750

Reinsurance:
Case reserves $641,286 $623,419
Additional case reserves 78,784 80,438
IBNR reserves 1,903,732 1,867,226
Total net reserves $2,623,802 $2,571,083

Total:
Case reserves $1,526,029 $1,434,473
Additional case reserves 78,784 80,438
IBNR reserves 4,062,211 3,967,922
Total net reserves $5,667,024 $5,482,833

At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the insurance segment�s Loss Reserves by major line of business, net of unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses recoverable, were as follows:

March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Casualty $658,853 $647,842
Construction and national accounts 456,599 431,309
Executive assurance 453,055 431,068
Professional liability 445,264 412,527
Property, marine and aviation 392,698 345,177
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Programs 371,158 370,852
Healthcare 149,384 153,018
Surety 78,193 87,232
Other 38,018 32,725
Total net reserves $3,043,222 $2,911,750
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At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the reinsurance segment�s Loss Reserves by major line of business, net of unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses recoverable, were as follows:

March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands) 2008 2007

Casualty $1,769,483 $1,715,712
Property excluding property catastrophe 306,946 295,728
Other specialty. 204,113 212,088
Marine and aviation 174,863 167,290
Property catastrophe 104,868 111,084
Other 63,529 69,181
Total net reserves $2,623,802 $2,571,083

Shareholders� Equity

Our shareholders� equity was $4.0 billion at March 31, 2008, compared to $4.04 billion at December 31, 2007. The decrease in the 2008 first
quarter of $31.3 million was primarily attributable to share repurchase activity and an after-tax decrease in the fair value of our investment
portfolio, partially offset by net income in the period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

ACGL is a holding company whose assets primarily consist of the shares in its subsidiaries. Generally, ACGL depends on its available cash
resources, liquid investments and dividends or other distributions from its subsidiaries to make payments, including the payment of debt service
obligations and operating expenses it may incur and any dividends or liquidation amounts with respect to the series A non-cumulative and series
B non-cumulative preferred shares and common shares.

On a consolidated basis, our aggregate cash and invested assets totaled $10.24 billion at March 31, 2008, compared to $10.12 billion at
December 31, 2007. ACGL�s readily available cash, short-term investments and marketable securities, excluding amounts held by our regulated
insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries, totaled $17.4 million at March 31, 2008, compared to $36.3 million at December 31, 2007. During the
2008 first quarter, ACGL received dividends of $160.0 million from Arch Re Bermuda which were used to fund the share repurchase program
described below along with the payment of preferred dividends and other corporate expenses.

The ability of our regulated insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries to pay dividends or make distributions or other payments to us is dependent
on their ability to meet applicable regulatory standards. Under Bermuda law, Arch Re Bermuda is required to maintain a minimum solvency
margin (i.e., the amount by which the value of its general business assets must exceed its general business liabilities) equal to the greatest of
(1) $100 million, (2) 50% of net premiums written (being gross premiums written by us less any premiums ceded by us, but we may not deduct
more than 25% of gross premiums when computing net premiums written) and (3) 15% of loss and other insurance reserves. Arch Re Bermuda
is prohibited from declaring or paying any dividends during any financial year if it is not in compliance with its minimum solvency margin or
minimum liquidity ratio. In addition, Arch Re Bermuda is prohibited from declaring or paying in any financial year dividends of more than 25%
of its total statutory capital and surplus (as shown on its previous financial year�s statutory balance sheet) unless it files, at least seven days before
payment of such dividends, with the Bermuda Monetary Authority an affidavit stating that it will continue to meet the required margins. In
addition, Arch Re Bermuda is prohibited, without prior approval of the Bermuda Monetary Authority, from reducing by 15% or more its total
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statutory capital, as set out in its previous year�s statutory financial statements. At December 31, 2007, as determined under Bermuda law, Arch
Re Bermuda had statutory capital of $2.0 billion and statutory capital and surplus of $3.73 billion. Such amounts include ownership interests in
U.S. insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, Arch Re Bermuda can pay approximately $933 million to ACGL during 2008 without
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providing an affidavit to the Bermuda Monetary Authority, as discussed above. Our U.S. insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries can pay
approximately $113.9 million in dividends or distributions to Arch-U.S., our U.S. holding company, which is owned by Arch Re Bermuda,
during 2008 without prior regulatory approval. Such dividends or distributions may be subject to applicable withholding or other taxes.
Arch-Europe can pay approximately £8.4 million, or $16.7 million, in dividends to ACGL during 2008 without prior notice and approval by the
FSA. In addition, the ability of our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries to pay dividends is also constrained by our dependence on the
financial strength ratings of our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries from independent rating agencies. The ratings from these agencies
depend to a large extent on the capitalization levels of our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries. We believe that ACGL has sufficient cash
resources and available dividend capacity to service its indebtedness and other current outstanding obligations.

Our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are required to maintain assets on deposit, which primarily consist of fixed maturities, with various
regulatory authorities to support their operations. The assets on deposit are available to settle insurance and reinsurance liabilities to third parties.
Our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries also have investments in segregated portfolios primarily to provide collateral or guarantees for letters
of credit to third parties. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, such amounts approximated $1.16 billion and $1.17 billion, respectively.
In addition, certain of our operating subsidiaries maintain assets in trust accounts as collateral for insurance and reinsurance transactions with
affiliated companies. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, such amounts approximated $3.84 billion and $3.8 billion, respectively.

ACGL, through its subsidiaries, provides financial support to certain of its insurance subsidiaries and affiliates, through certain reinsurance
arrangements essential to the ratings of such subsidiaries. Except as described in the preceding sentence, or where express reinsurance, guarantee
or other financial support contractual arrangements are in place, each of ACGL�s subsidiaries or affiliates is solely responsible for its own
liabilities and commitments (and no other ACGL subsidiary or affiliate is so responsible). Any reinsurance arrangements, guarantees or other
financial support contractual arrangements that are in place are solely for the benefit of the ACGL subsidiary or affiliate involved and third
parties (creditors or insureds of such entity) are not express beneficiaries of such arrangements.

Our insurance and reinsurance operations provide liquidity in that premiums are received in advance, sometimes substantially in advance, of the
time losses are paid. The period of time from the occurrence of a claim through the settlement of the liability may extend many years into the
future. Sources of liquidity include cash flows from operations, financing arrangements or routine sales of investments.

As part of our investment strategy, we seek to establish a level of cash and highly liquid short-term and intermediate-term securities which,
combined with expected cash flow, is believed by us to be adequate to meet our foreseeable payment obligations. However, due to the nature of
our operations, cash flows are affected by claim payments that may comprise large payments on a limited number of claims and which can
fluctuate from year to year. We believe that our liquid investments and cash flow will provide us with sufficient liquidity in order to meet our
claim payment obligations. However, the timing and amounts of actual claim payments related to recorded Loss Reserves vary based on many
factors, including large individual losses, changes in the legal environment, as well as general market conditions. The ultimate amount of the
claim payments could differ materially from our estimated amounts. Certain lines of business written by us, such as excess casualty, have loss
experience characterized as low frequency and high severity. The foregoing may result in significant variability in loss payment patterns. The
impact of this variability can be exacerbated by the fact that the timing of the receipt of reinsurance recoverables owed to us may be slower than
anticipated by us. Therefore, the irregular timing of claim payments can create significant variations in cash flows from operations between
periods and may require us to utilize other sources of liquidity to make these payments, which may include the sale of investments or utilization
of existing or new credit facilities or capital market transactions. If the source of liquidity is the sale of investments, we may be forced to sell
such investments at a loss, which may be material.
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Consolidated cash provided by operating activities was $334.5 million for the 2008 first quarter, compared to $403.1 million for the 2007 first
quarter. The lower level of operating cash flows in the 2008 first quarter primarily resulted from an increase in paid losses, as the Company�s
insurance and reinsurance loss reserves have continued to mature, along with a lower level of premiums written and collected. Cash flow from
operating activities are provided by premiums collected, fee income, investment income and collected reinsurance recoverables, offset by losses
and loss adjustment expense payments, reinsurance premiums paid, operating costs and current taxes paid.

We expect that our operational needs, including our anticipated insurance obligations and operating and capital expenditure needs, for the next
twelve months, at a minimum, will be met by our balance of cash, short-term investments and our credit facilities, as well as by funds generated
from underwriting activities and investment income and proceeds on the sale or maturity of our investments.

We monitor our capital adequacy on a regular basis and will seek to adjust our capital base (up or down) according to the needs of our business.
The future capital requirements of our business will depend on many factors, including our ability to write new business successfully and to
establish premium rates and reserves at levels sufficient to cover losses. Our ability to underwrite is largely dependent upon the quality of our
claims paying and financial strength ratings as evaluated by independent rating agencies. In particular, we require (1) sufficient capital to
maintain our financial strength ratings, as issued by several ratings agencies, at a level considered necessary by management to enable our key
operating subsidiaries to compete; (2) sufficient capital to enable our underwriting subsidiaries to meet the capital adequacy tests performed by
statutory agencies in the U.S. and other key markets; and (3) letters of credit and other forms of collateral that are necessary for our non-U.S.
operating companies because they are �non-admitted� under U.S. state insurance regulations.

As part of our capital management program, we may seek to raise additional capital or may seek to return capital to our shareholders through
share repurchases, cash dividends or other methods (or a combination of such methods). Any such determination will be at the discretion of our
board of directors and will be dependent upon our profits, financial requirements and other factors, including legal restrictions, rating agency
requirements and such other factors as our board of directors deems relevant.

On February 28, 2007, our board of directors authorized us to invest up to $1 billion in ACGL�s common shares through a share repurchase
program. Repurchases under the program may be effected from time to time in open market or privately negotiated transactions through
February 2009. During the 2008 first quarter, ACGL repurchased approximately 2.7 million common shares under the share repurchase program
for an aggregate purchase price of $189.8 million. Since the inception of the share repurchase program, ACGL has repurchased approximately
10.5 million common shares for an aggregate purchase price of $726.9 million. As a result of the share repurchase transactions to date, book
value per common share was reduced by $1.70 per share at March 31, 2008, compared to $1.45 at December 31, 2007, and weighted average
shares outstanding for the 2008 first quarter were reduced by 9.4 million shares. The timing and amount of the repurchase transactions under this
program will depend on a variety of factors, including market conditions and corporate and regulatory considerations. In connection with the
repurchase program, the Warburg Pincus funds waived their rights relating to share repurchases under the shareholders agreement for all
repurchases of common shares by ACGL under the repurchase program in open market transactions and certain privately negotiated
transactions.

In January 2008, we announced that Arch Re Bermuda finalized a joint venture agreement with Gulf Investment Corporation GSC (�GIC�) to
establish a new reinsurer to be based in the Dubai International Financial Centre. The joint venture will initially target the six member states of
the Gulf Cooperation Council, which include Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates. Under the agreement,
each of Arch Re Bermuda and GIC will own 50% of the joint venture. The joint venture will write a broad range of property and casualty
reinsurance, including aviation, energy, commercial transportation, marine, engineered risks and property, on both a treaty and facultative basis.
The initial total capital of the joint venture, which will be provided by Arch Re Bermuda and GIC equally, will consist of $200 million, plus an
additional
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$200 million to be funded depending on the joint venture�s business needs. The joint venture�s underwriting activities are expected to commence
during the first half of 2008, subject to approval by the Dubai Financial Services Authority.

To the extent that our existing capital is insufficient to fund our future operating requirements or maintain such ratings, we may need to raise
additional funds through financings or limit our growth. If we are not able to obtain adequate capital, our business, results of operations and
financial condition could be adversely affected, which could include, among other things, the following possible outcomes: (1) potential
downgrades in the financial strength ratings assigned by ratings agencies to our operating subsidiaries, which could place those operating
subsidiaries at a competitive disadvantage compared to higher-rated competitors; (2) reductions in the amount of business that our operating
subsidiaries are able to write in order to meet capital adequacy-based tests enforced by statutory agencies; and (3) any resultant ratings
downgrades could, among other things, affect our ability to write business and increase the cost of bank credit and letters of credit.

In addition to common share capital, we depend on external sources of finance to support our underwriting activities, which can be in the form
(or any combination) of debt securities, preference shares, common equity and bank credit facilities providing loans and/or letters of credit. Any
equity or debt financing, if available at all, may be on terms that are unfavorable to us. In the case of equity financings, dilution to our
shareholders could result, and, in any case, such securities may have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to those of our outstanding
securities.

In June 2006, ACGL and Arch-U.S. filed a universal shelf registration statement with the SEC. This registration statement allows for the
possible future offer and sale by us of various types of securities, including unsecured debt securities, preference shares, common shares,
warrants, share purchase contracts and units and depositary shares. The shelf registration statement enables us to efficiently access the public
debt and/or equity capital markets in order to meet our future capital needs. The shelf registration statement also allows selling shareholders to
resell common shares that they own in one or more offerings from time to time. We will not receive any proceeds from any shares offered by the
selling shareholders. This report is not an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any
state in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such state.

In August 2006, we entered into a five-year agreement for a $300 million unsecured revolving loan and letter of credit facility and a $1.0 billion
secured letter of credit facility. The $300 million unsecured loan and letter of credit facility is also available for the issuance of unsecured letters
of credit up to $100 million for our U.S.-based reinsurance operation. Including the secured letter of credit portion of the Credit Agreement and
another letter of credit facility (together, the �LOC Facilities�), we have access to letter of credit facilities for up to a total of $1.45 billion. At
March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, we had approximately $579.9 million and $612.4 million, respectively, in outstanding letters of credit
under the LOC Facilities, which were secured by investments totaling $612.2 million and $652.8 million, respectively.

During 2006, ACGL completed two public offerings of non-cumulative preferred shares. On February 1, 2006, $200.0 million principal amount
of 8.0% series A non-cumulative preferred shares (�series A preferred shares�) were issued with net proceeds of $193.5 million and, on May 24,
2006, $125.0 million principal amount of 7.875% series B non-cumulative preferred shares (�series B preferred shares� and together with the
series A preferred shares, the �preferred shares�) were issued with net proceeds of $120.9 million. The net proceeds of the offerings were used to
support the underwriting activities of ACGL�s insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries. ACGL has the right to redeem all or a portion of each
series of preferred shares at a redemption price of $25.00 per share on or after (1) February 1, 2011 for the series A preferred shares and
(2) May 15, 2011 for the series B preferred shares. Dividends on the preferred shares are non-cumulative. Consequently, in the event dividends
are not declared on the preferred shares for any dividend period, holders of preferred shares will not be entitled to receive a dividend for such
period, and such undeclared dividend will not accrue and will not

42

Edgar Filing: ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD. - Form 10-Q

71



be payable. Holders of preferred shares will be entitled to receive dividend payments only when, as and if declared by ACGL�s board of directors
or a duly authorized committee of ACGL�s board of directors. Any such dividends will be payable from the date of original issue on a
non-cumulative basis, quarterly in arrears. To the extent declared, these dividends will accumulate, with respect to each dividend period, in an
amount per share equal to 8.0% of the $25.00 liquidation preference per annum for the series A preferred shares and 7.875% of the $25.00
liquidation preference per annum for the series B preferred shares. In the 2008 and 2007 first quarters, we paid $6.5 million to holders of the
preferred shares and, at March 31, 2008, had declared an aggregate of $3.3 million of dividends to be paid to holders of the preferred shares.

At March 31, 2008, ACGL�s capital of $4.3 billion consisted of $300.0 million of senior notes, representing 7.0% of the total, $325.0 million of
preferred shares, representing 7.6% of the total, and common shareholders� equity of $3.68 billion, representing the balance. At December 31,
2007, ACGL�s capital of $4.34 billion consisted of $300.0 million of senior notes, representing 6.9% of the total, $325.0 million of preferred
shares, representing 7.5% of the total, and common shareholders� equity of $3.71 billion, representing the balance. The decrease in capital during
the 2008 first quarter of $31.3 million was primarily attributable to share repurchase activity and an after-tax decrease in the fair value of our
investment portfolio, partially offset by net income in the period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Off-balance sheet arrangements are discussed in Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Book Value Per Common Share and Share Repurchases

The following table presents the calculation of book value per common share and the impact of transactions under the share repurchase program
on book value per common share:

March 31, December 31,
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data) 2008 2007

Calculation of book value per common share:
Total shareholders� equity $4,004,544 $4,035,811
Less preferred shareholders� equity (325,000) (325,000)
Common shareholders� equity $3,679,544 $3,710,811
Common shares outstanding (1) 64,649,618 67,318,466
Book value per common share $56.92 $55.12

Effect of share repurchases to date:
Aggregate purchase price of shares repurchased $726,909 $537,066
Shares repurchased 10,518,948 7,769,039
Average price per share repurchased $69.10 $69.13

Estimated dilutive impact on ending book value per common share (2) $(1.70) $(1.45)

(1)  Excludes the effects of 5,400,266 and 5,486,033 stock options and 115,053 and 116,453 restricted stock units
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outstanding at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

(2)  As the average price per share repurchased during the periods exceeded the book value per common share at
March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the repurchase of shares during the periods reduced book value per common
share at both dates.

(3)  The estimated impact on diluted earnings per share was calculated comparing reported results versus (i) net
income per share plus an estimate of lost net investment income on the share repurchases divided by (ii) weighted
average
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diluted shares outstanding plus an estimate of the weighted average shares repurchased. The repurchase of shares was accretive to diluted
earnings per share in the 2008 first quarter. The repurchase of shares during the 2007 first quarter had a minimal impact on diluted earnings per
share due to the timing of such transactions.

Market Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management

In accordance with the SEC�s Financial Reporting Release No. 48, we performed a sensitivity analysis to determine the effects that market risk
exposures could have on the future earnings, fair values or cash flows of our financial instruments as of March 31, 2008. (See section captioned
�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Market Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management�
included in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.) Market risk represents the risk of changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
comprised of several components, including liquidity, basis and price risks. At March 31, 2008, material changes in market risk exposures that
affect the quantitative and qualitative disclosures presented as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Investment Market Risk

Fixed Income Securities. We invest in interest rate sensitive securities, primarily debt securities. We consider the effect of interest rate
movements on the market value of our fixed maturities, fixed maturities pledged under securities lending agreements, short-term investments
and certain of our other investments and investment funds accounted for using the equity method which invest in fixed income securities and the
corresponding change in unrealized appreciation. As interest rates rise, the market value of our interest rate sensitive securities falls, and the
converse is also true. The following table summarizes the effect that an immediate, parallel shift in the interest rate yield curve would have had
on the portfolio at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. Based on historical observations, there is a low probability that all interest rate yield
curves would shift in the same direction at the same time and, accordingly, the actual effect of interest rate movements may differ materially
from the amounts set forth below. For further discussion on investment activity, please refer to �Investments.�

Interest Rate Shift in Basis Points
(U.S. dollars in millions) -100 -50 0 50 100

March 31, 2008:
Total market value $10,191.0 $10,013.7 $9,839.8 $9,669.4 $9,502.4
Market value change from base 3.57% 1.77% � (1.73%) (3.43%)
Change in unrealized value $351.2 $173.9 � ($170.4) ($337.4)

December 31, 2007:
Total market value $10,048.9 $9,885.3 $9,725.0 $9,565.4 $9,409.6
Market value change from base 3.33% 1.65% � (1.64%) (3.24%)
Change in unrealized value $323.9 $160.3 � ($159.6) ($315.4)

Another method that attempts to measure portfolio risk is Value-at-Risk (�VaR�). VaR attempts to take into account a broad cross-section of risks
facing a portfolio by utilizing relevant securities volatility data skewed towards the most recent months and quarters. VaR measures the amount
of a portfolio at risk for outcomes 1.65 standard deviations from the mean based on normal market conditions over a one year time horizon and
is expressed as a percentage of the portfolio�s initial value. In other words, 95% of the time, should the risks taken into account in the VaR model
perform per their historical tendencies, the portfolio�s loss in any one year period is expected to be less than or equal to the calculated VaR, stated
as a percentage of the measured portfolio�s initial value. As of March 31, 2008, our portfolio�s VaR was estimated to be 5.47%, compared to an
estimated 3.73% at December 31, 2007.
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Equities and Privately Held Securities. Our investment portfolio includes an allocation to other investments which include investments in certain
stock index funds, other preferred stocks and privately held securities. See
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Note 6, �Investment Information�Other Investments,� of the notes accompanying our consolidated financial Statements foradditional disclosures
concerning our other investments. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of our investments in equities and privately held
securities totaled $183.9 million and $164.8 million, respectively. These securities are exposed to price risk, which is the potential loss arising
from decreases in the market value of equities. An immediate hypothetical 10% depreciation in the value of each equity position would reduce
the fair value of such investments by approximately $18.4 million and $16.5 million at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively,
and would have decreased book value per common share by approximately $0.28 and $0.24, respectively.

Investment-Related Derivatives. We began to invest in certain derivative instruments in 2006 to replicate investment positions and to manage
market exposures and duration risk. At March 31, 2008, the notional value of the net short position for equity futures was $66.2 million,
compared to a net long position for equity futures of $91.2 million at December 31, 2007. At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the
notional value of the net long position for Treasury note futures was $444.4 million and $61.7 million, respectively. A 10% depreciation of the
underlying exposure to these derivative instruments at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 would have resulted in a reduction in net income
of approximately $51.1 million and $15.3 million, respectively, and would have decreased book value per common share by $0.79 and $0.23,
respectively.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Foreign currency rate risk is the potential change in value, income and cash flow arising from adverse changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. A 10% depreciation of the U.S. Dollar against other currencies under our outstanding contracts at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
net of unrealized appreciation on our securities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, would have resulted in unrealized gains of
approximately $14.4 million and $12.9 million, respectively, and would have increased book value per common share by approximately $0.22
and $0.19, respectively. A 10% appreciation of the U.S. Dollar against other currencies under our outstanding contracts at March 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, net of unrealized depreciation on our securities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, would have resulted in
unrealized losses of approximately $14.4 million and $12.9 million, respectively, and would have decreased book value per common share by
approximately $0.22 and $0.19, respectively. Historical observations indicate a low probability that all foreign currency exchange rates would
shift against the U.S. Dollar in the same direction and at the same time and, accordingly, the actual effect of foreign currency rate movements
may differ materially from the amounts set forth above. For further discussion on foreign exchange activity, please refer to �Results of
Operations.�

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (�PLSRA�) provides a �safe harbor� for forward-looking statements. This report or any other
written or oral statements made by or on behalf of us may include forward-looking statements, which reflect our current views with respect to
future events and financial performance. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in or incorporated by reference in this
report are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements, for purposes of the PLSRA or otherwise, can generally be identified by the
use of forward-looking terminology such as �may,� �will,� �expect,� �intend,� �estimate,� �anticipate,� �believe� or �continue� and similar statements of a future
or forward-looking nature or their negative or variations or similar terminology.

Forward-looking statements involve our current assessment of risks and uncertainties. Actual events and results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied in these statements. Important factors that could cause actual events or results to differ materially from those indicated in
such statements are discussed below, elsewhere in this report and in our periodic reports filed with the SEC, and include:
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• our ability to successfully implement our business strategy during �soft� as well as �hard� markets;
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• acceptance of our business strategy, security and financial condition by rating agencies and regulators, as well as by brokers and our
insureds and reinsureds;

• our ability to maintain or improve our ratings, which may be affected by our ability to raise additional equity or debt financings, by
ratings agencies� existing or new policies and practices, as well as other factors described herein;

• general economic and market conditions (including inflation, interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and prevailing credit terms)
and conditions specific to the reinsurance and insurance markets in which we operate;

• competition, including increased competition, on the basis of pricing, capacity, coverage terms or other factors;

• our ability to successfully integrate, establish and maintain operating procedures (including the implementation of improved
computerized systems and programs to replace and support manual systems) to effectively support our underwriting initiatives and to develop
accurate actuarial data;

• the loss of key personnel;

• the integration of businesses we have acquired or may acquire into our existing operations;

• accuracy of those estimates and judgments utilized in the preparation of our financial statements, including those related to revenue
recognition, insurance and other reserves, reinsurance recoverables, investment valuations, intangible assets, bad debts, income taxes,
contingencies and litigation, and any determination to use the deposit method of accounting, which for a relatively new insurance and
reinsurance company, like our company, are even more difficult to make than those made in a mature company since relatively limited historical
information has been reported to us through March 31, 2008;

• greater than expected loss ratios on business written by us and adverse development on claim and/or claim expense liabilities related to
business written by our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries;

• severity and/or frequency of losses;

• claims for natural or man-made catastrophic events in our insurance or reinsurance business could cause large losses and substantial
volatility in our results of operations;
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• acts of terrorism, political unrest and other hostilities or other unforecasted and unpredictable events;

• losses relating to aviation business and business produced by a certain managing underwriting agency for which we may be liable to the
purchaser of our prior reinsurance business or to others in connection with the May 5, 2000 asset sale described in our periodic reports filed with
the SEC;

• availability to us of reinsurance to manage our gross and net exposures and the cost of such reinsurance;

• the failure of reinsurers, managing general agents, third party administrators or others to meet their obligations to us;

• the timing of loss payments being faster or the receipt of reinsurance recoverables being slower than anticipated by us;

• our investment performance;
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• material differences between actual and expected assessments for guaranty funds and mandatory pooling arrangements;

• changes in accounting principles or policies or in our application of such accounting principles or policies;

• changes in the political environment of certain countries in which we operate or underwrite business;

• statutory or regulatory developments, including as to tax policy and matters and insurance and other regulatory matters such as the
adoption of proposed legislation that would affect Bermuda-headquartered companies and/or Bermuda-based insurers or reinsurers and/or
changes in regulations or tax laws applicable to us, our subsidiaries, brokers or customers; and

• the other matters set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as the risk and other factors set forth in ACGL�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K and other documents on file with the SEC.

In addition, other general factors could affect our results, including developments in the world�s financial and capital markets and our access to
such markets.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their
entirety by these cautionary statements. The foregoing review of important factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in
conjunction with other cautionary statements that are included herein or elsewhere. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Other Financial Information

The interim financial information included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2008 has not
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. In reviewing such information, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has applied limited procedures in
accordance with professional standards for reviews of interim financial information. However, their separate report included in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the 2008 first quarter states that they did not audit and they do not express an opinion on that interim financial
information. Accordingly, you should restrict your reliance on their reports on such information. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not subject to
the liability provisions of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the interim financial information because such reports do
not constitute �reports� or �parts� of the registration statements prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within the meaning of
Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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Reference is made to the information appearing above under the subheading �Market Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management� under the
caption �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,� which information is hereby incorporated by
reference.

ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the filing of this Form 10-Q, our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to applicable Exchange Act Rules as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of the end of and during the period covered by this report with respect to
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information being recorded, processed, summarized and reported within time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms and with respect to
timely communication to them and other members of management responsible for preparing periodic reports of all material information required
to be disclosed in this report as it relates to ACGL and its consolidated subsidiaries.

We continue to enhance our operating procedures and internal controls to effectively support our business and our regulatory and reporting
requirements. Our management does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A
control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. As a result of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons or by collusion of two or more people. The design of
any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. As a result of the inherent limitations in a
cost-effective control system, misstatement due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Accordingly, our disclosure controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the disclosure controls and procedures are met.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION
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Item 1.  Legal Proceedings
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We, in common with the insurance industry in general, are subject to litigation and arbitration in the normal course of our business. As of
March 31, 2008, we were not a party to any material litigation or arbitration other than as a part of the ordinary course of business in relation to
claims and reinsurance recoverable matters, none of which is expected by management to have a significant adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition and liquidity.
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Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The following table summarizes ACGL�s purchases of its common shares for the 2008 first quarter:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased (1)
Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

as Part of
Publicly

Announced Plans
or Programs (2)

Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares that May
Yet be Purchased
Under the Plan
or Programs (2)

1/1/2008-1/31/2008 1,361,816 $69.55 1,361,816 $368,215
2/1/2008-2/29/2008 722,997 $68.56 716,394 $318,183
3/1/2008-3/31/2008 671,699 $67.13 671,699 $273,091
Total 2,756,512 $68.70 2,749,909 $273,091

(1) Includes 6,603 shares repurchased from employees in order to facilitate the payment of withholding taxes on restricted shares granted.
We purchased these shares at their fair market value, as determined by reference to the closing price of our common shares on the day the
restricted shares vested.

(2) On February 28, 2007, ACGL�s Board of Directors authorized ACGL to invest up to $1 billion in ACGL�s common shares through a
share repurchase program. Repurchases under the program may be effected from time to time in open market or privately negotiated transactions
through February 2009. The timing and amount of the repurchase transactions under this program will depend on a variety of factors, including
market conditions and corporate and regulatory considerations. In connection with the repurchase program, the Warburg Pincus funds waived
their rights relating to share repurchases under the shareholders agreement for all repurchases of common shares by ACGL under the repurchase
program in open market transactions and certain privately negotiated transactions.

Item 5.  Other Information
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In accordance with Section 10a(i)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, we are responsible for disclosing non-audit services to
be provided by our independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, which are approved by the Audit Committee
of our board of directors. During the 2008 first quarter, the Audit Committee approved engagements of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the
following permitted non-audit services: tax services, tax consulting and tax compliance.
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Exhibit No. Description

10 Joint Venture Agreement, dated January 22, 2008, between Gulf Investment Corporation GSC and Arch Reinsurance Ltd.
relating to Gulf Re Holdings Limited (1)

15 Accountants� Awareness Letter (regarding unaudited interim financial information)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1) Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.24 b-2, confidential information has been omitted and filed separately with the SEC pursuant to a request for
confidential treatment filed with the SEC.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ARCH CAPITAL GROUP LTD.
(REGISTRANT)

/s/ Constantine Iordanou
Date:  May 8, 2008 Constantine Iordanou

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) and Director

/s/ John D. Vollaro
Date:  May 8, 2008 John D. Vollaro

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit No. Description

10 Joint Venture Agreement, dated January 22, 2008, between Gulf Investment Corporation GSC and Arch Reinsurance Ltd.
relating to Gulf Re Holdings Limited (1)

15 Accountants� Awareness Letter (regarding unaudited interim financial information)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(2) Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.24 b-2, confidential information has been omitted and filed separately with the SEC pursuant to a request for
confidential treatment filed with the SEC.
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